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SUMMARY OF MAIN CHANGES FOR THE 2017 YEAR:

The following constitutes a summary of the main changes to the 2017 annual statutory return:

· Personal Medical Savings Accounts (PMSA)
In terms of the 6 June 2017 Constitutional Court judgement, the scheme is the right holder of the
personal medical savings accounts, and these monies form part of the scheme assets.

The judgement resulted in a number of changes in the annual statutory return:
o Amendment of the ISAE3000 limited assurance report;
o The removal of the word “trust” with reference to the liability throughout the return;
o The previous Part 4.5.2 is no longer relevant;
o These monies are therefore now included in part 9(a) as Annexure B restrictions apply; and
o Unclaimed monies are now written back to the scheme’s funds after the required period per

the Prescription Act has expired.

However, when the rules state that savings monies belong to members, the Financial Institutions
(Protection of Funds) Act, 28 of 2001 (FIA) applies which means that these funds are trust money
which must be kept separately.  Affected medical schemes can continue to apply the same
accounting treatment which was required by the CMS prior to the Constitutional court judgment.

· Part 4.12 Accredited managed healthcare services (no transfer of risk)
The scheme will now only be able to enter data relating to the services provided per accredited
managed care entity in terms of their accreditation status. Services that are not accredited for a
specific entity will be greyed out.

· Part 4.13 Net (income)/expense from other risk transfer arrangements (excluding commercial
reinsurance contracts)
The scheme will now only be able to enter data relating to the services provided per accredited
managed care entity in terms of their accreditation status. Accredited managed care services that are
not accredited for a specific entity will be greyed out.

The scheme will still be able to capture details relating to other (non-accredited) risk transfer services
provided.

· Part 4.15(a) Broker service fees
The reason box has been updated with new maximum amount payable to brokers.

· Audit trail functionality
An audit trail report will be generated based on a selection of parameters and emailed to the user
that requested it.
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LOGIN ONTO ANNUAL STATUTORY RETURN

Not yet a user on the system:

Click on the words ‘Register Here’.
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The following screen will appear when the user clicked on the ‘Register Here’ button:

The user should ensure that he or she selects all the schemes, for which he or she would want to register,
when clicking on the selection-button.

When the user submits his or her request to be registered, an e-mail will be send to the ‘administrator’ of
that scheme, to approve the registration of the user.  Please note that our system has one administrator for
each scheme, which is the very first person to register as a user for that specific scheme.

As soon as we receive the approval from the ‘administrator’ of the scheme, the Office will e-mail the new
user his or her username and password to access the online statutory return.
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Registered as an user on the system

The user should then capture his or her user name and password on the login screen and press submit.
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Forgot your password?

Should a user forget his or her password, the user should use the button provided on the login screen
stating “Forgot your Password? Click Here”

The following screen will appear, and the user will be required to complete the required information and
press OK.  If the secret answer corresponds with the answer captured during the registration process of the
user, the user will receive an e-mail from the Office with his password.
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As soon as the user has logged in, the following screen will appear:

The user should choose the specific scheme he or she wants to access.  The user will also have the option
to choose whether he or she wants to access the current year’s return or the previous years’ returns (in a
read-only format).
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After selecting the scheme, the following screen will appear:
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CONTACT US

Should a user experience any problems with the online statutory return, he or she can contact the Office at
any point in time by just clicking on the ‘Contact us’ option on the task bar. The following screen will
appear:

The name of the financial analyst responsible for the specific scheme will appear on the screen.

The user should complete the subject of the enquiry (indicating the specific parts of the annual return
affected), provide details of his/her enquiry and attach screenshots to illustrate the problem where
applicable, and then press ‘send’.  An e-mail will be send to the specific financial analyst responsible for the
scheme.  It is then the financial analyst’s responsibility to contact the scheme and resolve the enquiry.
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STATUTORY RETURN

To access the individual parts of the online statutory return, the user should click on the ‘statutory return’
button on the task bar. Part 1.1 will automatically open.

General comments on the completion of the return

The system does not recognise apostrophes (‘) and &-signs.

The user will not be able to input any figures with decimals; only whole figures will be accepted.

The Annual Statutory Return’s web application is only compatible with Internet Explorer version 10 or
higher. Data captured through other browsers (e.g. Firefox, Chrome, etc.) would not save. When accessing
the return through these applications, the following error message would be generated:

To ensure that the return is viewed optimally, the user should ensure that the computer screen size is set at
1 280 x 1024.
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PART 1 GOVERNANCE

Part 1.1 Details of Medical Scheme and Certification of Return

The details of the scheme and its officials are maintained by the Office. Part 1.1 will therefore always be in a
read-only format. In order to affect changes in this part, refer to the pop-up for the contact details of the
relevant person to address the updates to:
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Please ensure that the latest details of the Principal Officer, Chairperson, Trustee signatory, Scheme,
Administrator, Co-Administrator, Fund manager, User, Auditor(s) and Liquidator or Curator (where
applicable) are updated every period in part 1.1 of the return. Kindly also refer to Circular 27 of 2014 in this
respect.

It is extremely important to ensure that the correct contact details for the Principal Officer, the Chairperson
and the other trustee are captured in part 1.1, as these details will be used when the SignFlow process
described below, is initiated. Should the scheme have contracted with the previous Principal Officer or
Chairperson (i.e. as at 31 December) to sign off on the annual financial statements, the new officials will be
able to create a proxy to allow the previous officials to electronically sign the return.

Reference number

When the scheme was originally uploaded onto the system, a reference number was automatically
registered on our system.

Please note that the reference number will stay the same even if the scheme changed its name.

Amalgamations

A final set of audited accounts (as at the date of the amalgamation), including the statutory return (as at
31 December) for the year in which a scheme has amalgamated have to be prepared and submitted to the
Registrar.

Please take note that all the sections must be completed with the data for the period in which the scheme
that amalgamated was still in operation.  This is done to ensure that the full 12 months’ figures are obtained
for all sections, especially parts 2 and 4 and the statement of comprehensive income (the reason being that
the new scheme will not report on that data in their return as only opening balances are taken into account
in their return).



Help File: 2017 Annual Statutory Return

Page 16 of 142

Every line item of the statement of financial position should be completed in detail.  The closing statement of
financial position figures will become zero in the return through the use of the last line item “Less: Transfer
of assets / liability due to amalgamation during the year”. These lines are applicable for amalgamations that
occurred during the year, as the annual financial statements would have been prepared as at the date of
amalgamation, whilst the return is as at 31 December.

For example:

Please ensure that the closing balances of the scheme that amalgamated agree with the opening balance
that has been taken forward to the new scheme for incorporation into their accounts.
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Consolidations

Where a scheme completes the annual return on a consolidated basis, group transactions that relates to
other parties in the group (not the scheme) should be aggregated and included in the specific line provided
for on the statement of financial position items, as well as on the statement of cash flows (line 8.7).
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All income statement transactions for the group companies should be included in part 4.23 line 4.23.35 and
part 6.1 line 6.1.21:

Liquidations

A final set of accounts, including the statutory return, should be prepared until the effective date of
liquidation. As with amalgamations, the submitted financial statements would be prepared as at the date of
the liquidation, whilst the statutory return should be prepared as at 31 December.

Again the scheme would need to complete all the line items of the statement of financial position in detail.
The closing statement of financial position figures will become zero in the return through the use of the last
line item.

Auditor(s)

The details of the auditor(s), as approved by the Registrar in terms of section 36 of the Act for the applicable
financial year, will be reflected in part 1.9.

The auditor is also required to electronically sign the return. It is important to note that the auditor’s
signature is for identification purposes only (it is also indicated as such on the signature page), and does not
represent a sign-off on the return.  The auditor will therefore still need to submit the required audit reports
separately.
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Certification of the return

In terms of section 39(1) of the Act a medical scheme shall be deemed not to have complied with any
provision of this Act which imposes upon such a medical scheme the obligation to furnish to the Registrar a
document prepared by the medical scheme, unless such document is signed by either the Principal Officer
and one other person authorised in accordance with the rules of the medical scheme to sign documents or
the Curator.

In addition section 39(2)(a) of the Act requires that the following persons shall sign any document within
terms of any provision of the Act must be furnished by a medical scheme to the Registrar:
(a) In the case of a board of trustees, the chairperson of the board of trustees, and by one other member of

such board; and
(b) In any other case, persons designated by the Registrar who exercise control over the business of the

medical scheme concerned.

Should the Principal Officer or Chairperson as at 31 December no longer be officials of the medical scheme,
it is important to note that the signing authority of a Principal Officer and/or Chairperson can only be
delegated to a suitable person appointed by the board of trustees; the appointment of the acting Principal
Officer should be in line with the provisions of section 57(4) (a) and 57(7) of the Medical Schemes Act, and
the appointment of the acting Chairperson in line with the rules of the scheme.

Where applicable, a copy of the signed board of trustee resolution, where another person was appointed,
should accompany the annual statutory return.

In terms of the workflow created by SignFlow to enable the electronic signing of the return, as well as to
ensure that the annual return is not sent to a mailbox no longer being monitored, the current Principal
Officer and Chairperson’s details will be used for signature purposes. Should the scheme have alternative
arrangements with the previous Principal Officer or Chairperson (i.e. as at 31 December) to sign off on the
annual financial statements, the new official will be able to create a proxy to allow the previous officials to
electronically sign the return.

It is extremely important to ensure that the correct contact details for the Principal Officer, the Chairperson
and the other trustee are captured in part 1.1, as these details will be used when the SignFlow process
described below, is initiated.

Signflow for annual return purposes: electronic signatures

SignFlow SignFREE™ allows scheme officials and auditors to receive, approve (or decline) and e-sign
electronic documents that were sent to them by the Council for Medical Schemes free of charge. These
digital SignFREE e-signatures are securely created for each individual and will prohibit any changes being
made to the document after it has been signed.

The scheme officials and auditors would simply need to open the link from their email, create their password
and login to their SignFREE account.

The SignFlow workflow engine will automatically circulate the annual return to applicable signatories until all
signatories have signed.

The Dashboard will be the starting point for anything that a user want to do in SignFlow. Below is a
description of the baskets relevant to the signing of the annual return and what it contains:
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· Pending
Any items that require a user to perform an action like signing or approving will be in this basket.

· Circulating
All the documents that a user has sent to be signed will be displayed in this basket. So any
document that has an incomplete workflow will be displayed here.

· Cancelled
Any document workflow that a user has cancelled will be displayed in this basket.

· Completed
Documents that have been signed and approved are stored in this basket.

· Shared
This basket will display all the documents that have been shared with a user. If the user has been
added to a workflow as a viewer, documents will be displayed in this basket. They will also be
displayed here if a user has been part of a workflow to sign a document.

Signing a document:

From the Dashboard there are two indicators that a user has documents pending. Firstly, a notification
flashing in the top right-hand corner of the window will be displayed, and then the pending basket will
indicate how many documents a user currently have pending. In addition to these, if a user is not signed into
SignFlow, the user will receive an email requesting the document to be actioned.
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With these three options, there are three ways of initiating the signing ceremony:

· Click on the link in the email received, and then enter the user’s login details.

· Click on the flashing notification icon in SignFlow, and click on the Open button to go directly to the
signing page.

· Click on the Pending basket, and select the document to be signed.

Once the signing ceremony has been initiated/started, thumbnails of the pages will be displayed on the left-
hand side of the page. Each page that requires an action is marked with a yellow indicator:

If there are Plain Text Fields in the document, the user will have to complete these fields before proceeding

to sign the document. Once required text fields are completed, click on the  button.

Read through the document and click on the block that says “Sign Here”. The user’s document is now
digitally signed.

The document originator will be notified that a signatory has signed the document, and the document will be
moved to the signatory’s Shared basket. Shared documents do not impact the available documents on the
SignFlow license, where the signatory has not originated the document.

There are other options besides signing the document, as displayed in the right-hand menu.

· Back
This button will take the user back to the previous step.

· Download
This button will download the document as a .PDF document.

· Reject the document
This button will reject the document sent to the user, and request that a reason why the document
is being rejected is entered/provided. This reason will be sent with the user’s rejection to the
document originator.

· Nominate someone else
If the document originator allowed Proxy, by clicking on this button new window will be displayed
where a user will be able to enter the details of a nominated person and send the document to
them.
The current Principal Officer and Chairperson’s would be able to make use of this button to re-
allocate the signatory in the event that the scheme has made alternative arrangements with the
previous Principal Officer or Chairperson (i.e. as at 31 December) to sign off on the annual
financial statements.
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Part 1.2 Benefit Options
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The Council keeps record of the registered benefit options, as well as any Efficiency Discount Sub-Option
registered in terms of an exemption obtained from Section 29(1)(n) in terms of Section 8(h), of the scheme
and as such the names of the registered benefit options in part 1.2 will be in a read-only format. Part 1.2
reflects all registered options for the financial year concerned; even if some of the options were discontinued
during the course of the year.

A scheme should NOT request the registration of an option in part 1.2 if that option was not in operation
during the year concerned.  Provision has been made for financial transactions in the ‘other’ column in part
4.23 of the return, should the scheme have incurred some financial transactions in the year concerned for
options been deregistered but are in process of being winded down.

The benefit options captured in part 1.2 will automatically pull through to parts 2.1, 2.3, 2.7, 3.6 and 4.23.

The names of the sub-options will pull through to Part 6.3. Part 6.3 is the only part in the return that requires
information (financial as well as non-financial) relating to Efficiency Discount Sub-Options.

Part 1.3.1 Board of Trustees

As the Office keeps record of the details of the scheme and its officials, the trustee names is in a read-only
format. The names of all the board of trustees that were in office during the financial year (at any point in
time) are listed in this part; together with their racial profile.  It should be noted that the names captured in
part 1.3.1 automatically pulls through to part 4.17, where the scheme completes the remuneration and
considerations paid to the board of trustee members during the financial year concerned.
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The scheme should indicate the number of Board meetings and Sub-committee meetings each trustee
attended during the year.

Part 1.3.2 Training attended

This part requires details on the training attended by each individual trustee.

Training does not include attending Indabas, conferences, workshops and any other related events. Training
is provided by either a training facility or accredited skills development entity:
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Part 1.4 Report of the Management Board/Committee

This part requires the board of trustees to complete a number of questions. The format of the questions
requires a “yes” or “no” answer. More details might be required in some questions depending on the answer.
Please note that the user’s answer will not be accepted if the boxes that require more detail are not
completed:

The names of the contracts entered in questions 6(a), 6(b) and 6(f)(i) in the previous year’s return will
automatically pull through to the current year. Similarly the contract names in question 6(d) will be generated
from the information displayed in part 1.1 of the return. Any additional contracts should be entered manually
by the scheme.

The names of third party providers in questions 6(a), 6(b), 6(c), 6(f)(i), 6(g) and 7 pulls through to parts 4.12,
4.13, 4.14, 4.16.2, 9(b) and 4.26 respectively.
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PART 2 MEMBERSHIP

Please note that when certain specifications are met, the user will be required to complete a reason box.
The user will not be able to submit the return without completing the relevant reason boxes.

Part 2.1 Membership at the End of the Financial Year

The membership figures for each of the benefit options should be provided in this part. The dependants
should also be split between adult and child dependants as defined in the rules of the scheme.
Beneficiaries are the sum of members and dependants.

Dependant ratio
The dependant ratio is calculated as the total dependants (adult plus child) divided by the number of
members. This calculation is done automatically.

Reason boxes
The following reason boxes must be completed when specifications are met:
· Please provide the reasons, should the members and/or adult and/or child dependants be zero for any

option; and
· Please provide the reasons, and action to be taken, should the principle members be less than 6 000

members.
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Part 2.2 Number of Registered Members and Dependants at the End of Each Month

The scheme should capture the number of members, adult dependants and child dependants (as defined in
the scheme’s rules) per month in this section. Beneficiaries are the sum of members and dependants.

The December figures automatically pulls from part 2.1.

Average members and dependants
The total number of members and dependants for the year divided by the number of months in which the
medical scheme had members.  For example, if a scheme had members from October to December for the
financial year, the total will be divided by three. This calculation is done automatically.

Dependant ratio
The dependant ratio is calculated as the total number of dependants (adult plus child) divided by the number
of members. This calculation is done automatically.

Reason boxes
The following reason box must be completed when specifications are met:
· Please provide the reasons, should the members and/or adult and/or child dependants be zero for any

option.
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Part 2.3 Age Analysis of Beneficiaries as at the End of the Financial Year

The scheme should capture the number of beneficiaries as at 31 December per age band in this section.  It
is important to note that the age of the beneficiary should be calculated as at 1 January of the financial year
concerned:

This information should be provided on an option level, and should be split between male and female
beneficiaries.

The consolidated number of beneficiaries as well as the number of beneficiaries per option should validate
to the number of beneficiaries captured in part 2.1.
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65 years + ratio
The system automatically calculates the number of beneficiaries older than 65 years as a percentage of the
total beneficiaries. This is done on a consolidated as well as option level.

Average age per beneficiary
The system automatically calculates the average age per beneficiary for the scheme as well as the
individual options.

Reason boxes
The following reason box must be completed when specifications are met:
· Please provide the reasons, should the total males or females be zero for any option.

Part 2.4 Racial Demographics of Beneficiaries as at the End of the Financial Year

The scheme should capture the racial demographics of its beneficiaries per province in this section.

The total number of beneficiaries should validate to the number of beneficiaries captured in part 2.1.

Reason boxes
The following reason box must be completed when specifications are met:
· Please provide the reasons, should the members and/or adult and/or child dependants be zero for any

option.
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PART 3 REPORTING BY THE AUDITORS IN TERMS OF SECTIONS 36, 37 & 39
OF THE ACT

Please note that these reports need to be amended by the auditor, printed on the auditor’s letterhead and
signed by the auditor:

Part 3(a) Auditor’s report

The auditor report provides assurance through an audit of Parts 4 – 10 of the Return, and a review on
Part 6.2 of the Return of a scheme, that these have been prepared in all material respects in accordance
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with the provisions of the Act, related Regulations, the Help File for the completion of the Return and the
applicable Circulars issued by the CMS.

This report originates from the following sections in the Act:
· Section 36(8), which states that the auditor should certify whether any return or statement which he or

she is required to examine in terms of Chapter 7 (Financial Matters) of the Act, complies with the
requirements of the Act and whether it presents fairly the matters dealt with therein, as if such return or
statement were a financial statement; and

· Section 37(2), which inter alia states that the AFS shall consist of “(e) such other returns as the
Registrar may require”, which in this case is the Return.

· As the Return is deemed to be part of the AFS, it is required to be audited in terms of Section 37(3).

The audit is performed using ISA 800 and the review is performed using ISRE 2410. The auditor report is
restricted to the financial information contained in Parts 4 – 10 of the Return.

Even though the auditor is required to electronically sign the return, it is for identification purposes only (it is
also indicated as such on the signature page).

It should therefore be noted that the Part 3(a) report should be amended and printed on the auditor’s
letterhead; and signed:
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Part 3(b) Limited assurance report

This auditor report is the format in which the CMS requires an auditor to report on all non-compliance
matters by a medical scheme of which an auditor becomes aware in the performance of the auditor’s
functions as an auditor, as required by Sections 36(5)(b) and 36(8)(b) of the Act.
These sections are limited to the financial aspects of the Act which an auditor will address in the auditor’s
normal audit procedures.
The auditor should ensure that all the necessary tests are performed during the course of the audit, to be
able to sign off on this report.
It should be noted that for purposes of this auditor report, materiality is set as one, as all non-
compliance matters need to be reported to the CMS.
In determining compliance to Section 57(4)(f) regarding the duties of the Trustees to take out and maintain
an appropriate level of professional indemnity and fidelity insurance, the auditor is referred to the following
audit procedures:
· Inspect the fidelity guarantee and professional indemnity policy and confirm the policy number and R-

value of the cover taken out by the scheme in accordance with Section 57(4)(f) of the Act;
· Inspect the appropriate documentation and enquire from the scheme’s administrator and management

whether the premiums were fully paid up; and
· Inspect the minutes of meetings to confirm that cover was assessed for appropriateness by Board of

Trustees.
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The auditor must only report on the relevant paragraph relating to personal medical savings accounts
(PMSA):

· Sections 10 and 11(d) of the Prescription Act 68 of 1969 relating to the prescription of a debt owed to a
member in respect of personal medical savings accounts; or

· Sections 4(1), 4(2), 4(4) and 4(5) of the Financial Institutions (Protection of Funds) Act 28 of 2001
relating to the investment of personal medical savings account monies and the separation thereof from
scheme assets, read together with Section 2(c) of the Protection of Funds Act relating to the allocation
of investment income earned in respect of these monies.
The auditor will report on the Protection of Funds Act where the Scheme Rules created a trust
arrangement between the member and the scheme by stating that the PMSA monies belong to
members.

Even though the auditor is required to electronically sign the return, it is for identification purposes only (it is
also indicated as such on the signature page).

It should therefore be noted that the Part 3(b) report should be amended and printed on the auditor’s
letterhead; and signed:

PART 4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please note that when certain specifications are met, the user will be required to complete a reason box.
The user will not be able to submit the return without completing the relevant reason boxes.
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Part 4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

The opening balances in lines 4.1.1.1.1 and 4.1.2.1.1 pulls through from lines 4.1.1.9 and 4.1.2.8 of the
previous year’s annual return respectively.

A minus must be placed in front of all credit entries (i.e. disposals / impairment write down / accumulated
depreciation).

The total depreciation charges in part 4.1.2.2 must agree with the depreciation in part 4.16.1.16.

Investment property should not be included in this part.  Land & buildings in this part only relates to owner-
occupied assets.  Investment properties should be included in part 4.2.

All assets not specifically provided for in the column headings of part 4.1 (e.g. office equipment) should be
aggregated and included in the ‘other’ column provided:
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The scheme should provide the exact nature of any amounts included in parts 4.1.1.6 and 4.1.2.5. The
scheme should only complete this part if the return does not cater specifically for that kind of transaction
elsewhere in part 4.1.

The following reason box should be completed (if the specifications are  met):

Specification Reason box wording
Previous year figures were
restated / reclassified in line
4.1.1.1.2 or line 4.1.2.1.2.

Please provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements/reclassifications.
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Part 4.2 Investments

The investments should be split between non-current (long-term) investments and (current) short-term
investments, as per the audited financial statements of the scheme. Investments are considered to be
current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
· It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale in, the scheme’s normal operation cycle;
· It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or
· It is expected to be realised within 12 months after statement of financial position date.

Every class of investments should be aggregated and disclosed in the line item provided for that specific
class of investments. The scheme should provide the full details of any investments included in the ‘other’
button in 4.2.5.
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Part 4.3 Trade and Other Receivables

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

Part 4.3(a)

The scheme should provide a proper ageing of debtor balances, where required in the return. The scheme
should not disclose the full debtor balance under one age category.

Any advances on personal medical savings accounts should be shown separately as part of trade and other
receivables (part 4.3.3); these balances should also be aged.
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The total advances on the savings plan accounts should agree with the savings plan advances disclosed in
part 4.5.1.16.

Risk transfer arrangements (4.3.4) are the sum of commercial reinsurance contracts (4.3.4.1) and other risk
transfer arrangements (4.3.4.2).

Commercial reinsurance contracts will constitute insurance contracts entered into with a long-term insurer
registered in terms of section 9 of the Long-term Insurance Act, 1998 (Act No. 52 of 1998), or a short-term
insurer registered in terms of section 9 of the Short-term Insurance Act, 1998 (Act No. 53 of 1998).

The share of outstanding claims provision covered by commercial reinsurance contracts (4.3.4.1.1) plus the
share of claims reported not yet paid covered by commercial reinsurance contracts (4.3.4.1.2) must agree
with the provision for reinsurance claims recovered in part 4.14.3. Line 4.3.4.1.1 also has to agree to the
closing balance of the “outstanding claims provision-covered by commercial reinsurance contracts”
(4.9.8 Column C).

Commercial reinsurance claims paid by the scheme but not yet recovered from the reinsurer should be
included in part 4.3.4.1.2.

A risk transfer asset is considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence, as a result of an event
that occurred after initial recognition of the asset, that the scheme may not recover its full exposure in kind in
terms of the contract, and that the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the scheme
will now have to pay to the member. The provision for impaired losses in respect of commercial reinsurance
contracts must be included in 4.3.4.1.3.

Other risk transfer arrangements will constitute all “other” reinsurance contracts that fall within the definition
of IFRS 4, for example a capitation agreement entered into with a managed healthcare provider. Please
note that not all capitation agreements will fall within the definition of IFRS 4 by default. Each contract will
have to be evaluated in terms of IFRS 4. (Also refer to the relevant Appendix of the SAICA Medical
Schemes Accounting Guide (SAICA Guide))

Depending on the tail of the specified benefits provided and the timing and accuracy of the information
received from the managed healthcare provider regarding the specified benefits delivered before year end,
the scheme should recognise an outstanding claims provision and an “other risk transfer” asset. This
represents the scheme’s best estimate of costs incurred and “costs” recovered in kind before year end, but
not yet reported at the time.

The share of outstanding claims provision covered by other risk transfer arrangements (4.3.4.2.1) should
therefore agree with the closing balance of the “outstanding claims provision-covered by other risk transfer
arrangements” (4.9.8 Column D). A risk transfer asset, under for example a capitation agreement, is
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after initial
recognition of the asset, that the scheme may not recover its full exposure in kind in terms of the contract,
and that the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the scheme will now have to pay to
the member. The provision for impaired losses in respect of other risk transfer arrangements must be
included in 4.3.4.2.3.

The corresponding entries in respect of the share of claims reported not yet paid (both commercial
reinsurance contracts (4.3.4.1.2) and other risk transfer arrangements (4.3.4.2.2) needs to be included in
4.8.1 (reported claims not yet paid).

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any prepaid expenditure included in line 4.3.7.
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Accrued interest (part 4.3.9) should include all accrued interest, including those specified on the schemes’
investment portfolios.

All amounts owing by providers (i.e. overpayments made to providers), should be included in the provider
balances line in part 4.3.11 of the return.

The scheme should include any related party debit balances at year-end in 4.3.12.5 (unless the return
provides for that related party in another specific line). These balances should correspond with the scheme’s
related party disclosure note in terms if IAS 24 in its audited financial statements. The nature of the related
party relationship should also be indicated. Balances captured in this line would also pull through
automatically to part 4.26.2.

The scheme should ensure that they disclose every debtor in the specific line provided for in part 4.3.
Sundry debtors (4.3.13) should only be used if the return did not make provision for that specific debtor.

The scheme should furthermore NOT aggregate all its sundry debtor balances together in one line item in
sundry debtors (4.3.13). Any balance greater than 10% of the total trade and other receivables should be
disclosed separately in part 4.3.13.

Users are referred to the guidance provided in the SAICA Guide in respect of the recognition of Road
Accident Fund (RAF) debtors.

The following reason boxes might warrant completion (if the specifications are  met):

Specification Reason box wording
Contributions
outstanding for
more than 30 days

Please indicate whether the scheme has any agreements in place with
employers / members to pay their contributions after 3 days of it becoming
due.

Contributions
outstanding for
more than 30 days

Please indicate the remedial actions taken by the scheme where
contributions were received after three days of it becoming due

4.3.12.1 > R0 What is the nature of/reasons for the amount owed by the administrator?
4.3.12.2 > R0 What is the nature of/reasons for the amount owed by reinsurers (other than

claims recoveries)?
4.3.12.3 > R0 What is the nature of/reasons for the amount owed by managed care

organisations (other than claims recoveries)?
4.3.12.4 > R0 What is the nature of/reasons for the amount owed by brokers?
4.3.12.5 > R0 What is the nature of/reasons for the amount owed by other related parties?
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Part 4.3(b)

In part 4.3(b) the scheme has to split out the movements in respect of risk transfer arrangements.

The previous year’s balance automatically pulls through to lines 4.3.1.1 and 4.3.2.2.

The closing balances should correspond with the balances entered in part 4.3(a), and the movements in
these balances between periods with the scheme’s risk transfer arrangements (trade and other receivables)
disclosure note in terms of IFRS 4 par.37(e) in its audited financial statements.
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Part 4.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Any bank overdraft balances should not be netted off against positive bank balances in this part; bank
overdrafts should be disclosed in part 4.8 (trade and other payables).

Outstanding cheques are only disclosed in part 4.4.8 if it has not already been written back to trade and
other payables (4.8).  If the outstanding cheques are included in cash and cash equivalents, it should be
noted that 4.4.8 is only a disclosure item, to enable the Office to test the scheme’s compliance with
Regulation 30, read together with Annexure B. Line 4.4.7 should still agree with the scheme’s audited cash
and cash equivalents.
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Part 4.5.1 Personal Medical Savings Account Liability

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

The savings plan liability at the beginning of the year 4.5.1.1 as well as the opening advances on the
savings plan account 4.5.1.3 is pulled through from the previous year’s closing savings plan liability
(4.5.1.16 in the previous year’s annual return) and advances on the savings plan account (4.5.1.15 in the
previous year’s annual return).

The savings contributions for the current year in part 4.5.1.5.1 pulls automatically through from part 4.10.2.

The interest paid on savings plan accounts in part 4.5.1.8 pulls automatically through from part 4.22.2
(finance costs – interest paid on savings accounts).
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The claims paid on behalf of members in part 4.5.1.10 pulls automatically through from part 4.11.2 (savings
claims paid).

Administration expenses in part 4.5.1.11 pulls automatically through from part 4.16.38 (administration
expenses recoverable from savings plan accounts).

Unclaimed personal medical savings accounts written off to scheme funds in part 4.5.1.14 automatically
through from part 4.23.30 (unclaimed personal medical savings accounts written off).

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any amounts included in line 4.5.1.15. The scheme should
only complete this part if the return does not cater specifically for that kind of transaction elsewhere in
part 4.5.1.

It is very important to split the debit balances included in the savings plan liability from the credit balances.
These debit balances at year-end should be disclosed in part 4.5.1.17.

The scheme is required to split the credit savings balance at year-end between current members and
resigned members.  The scheme should further perform an ageing of the credit savings balances of
resigned members between the balances younger than 6 months and the balances older than 6 months.

The balances older than 6 months should also be split further in accordance with its monetary value:
· <= R100
· R101 - R500
· R501 - R1 000
· R1 001 - R2 000
· R2 001 - R5 000
· R5 001 - R10 000
· > R10 000
The number of PMSA accounts in respect of each monetary bracket and the total amount owed in respect of
these accounts needs to be disclosed.

Resigned members in the ageing should include members resigned from the scheme as well as members
resigned from an option with savings to an option without savings within the scheme.

Both savings contributions and withdrawals are accounted for on the cash basis, i.e. no provision is made
for outstanding claims at the end of the accounting period.

When certain specifications are met, the reason boxes need to be completed:

Specification Reason box wording
Line 4.5.1.19.2.2 > R0 What procedures are in place to follow-up on members that need to be

refunded?
Previous year figures were
restated / reclassified in
line 4.5.1.2.

Please provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements/reclassifications.
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Part 4.5.2 Personal Medical Savings Account Trust Investment

When the rules state that savings monies belong to members, the Financial Institutions (Protection of
Funds) Act, 28 of 2001 (FIA) applies which means that these funds are trust money which must be kept
separately.  Affected medical schemes can continue to apply the same accounting treatment which was
required by the CMS prior to the Constitutional court judgment.

Where the Scheme rules does not create the above-mentioned trust agreement, kindly confirm this fact in
the reason box provided.
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This part requires information on how the personal medical savings account trust monies were invested on
the members’ behalf.

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any balances included in line 4.5.2.4.

The scheme would also be required to provide information on the reconciling items between the balance of
the trust investment and that of the PMSA liability.

Part 4.6 Borrowings

The scheme should split its borrowings between interest bearing borrowings and non-interest bearing
borrowings.  The borrowings should further be split between current borrowings and non-current borrowings.

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
· It is expected to be settled in the scheme’s normal operating cycle;
· It is due to be settled within 12 months after the statement of financial position date; or
· The scheme does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the statement of financial position date.

Details of every borrowing should be provided in the description line provided (4.6.1); it should be noted that
all the scheme’s borrowings should not be aggregated and disclosed as a single line in part 4.6.1.
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In this regard it is important to note that section 35(6) (c) states that a medical scheme shall not directly or
indirectly borrow money without the prior approval of the Council or subject to such directives as the Council
may issue, this being the reason why further detail in respect of approval of the borrowings is requested in
the reason box.

Part 4.7 Other Non-Current Liabilities

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

Details of every non-current liability should be provided in the description line provided (4.7.1.2); it should be
noted that all the scheme’s non-current liabilities should not be aggregated and disclosed as a single line in
part 4.7.1.
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When certain specifications are met, the following reason boxes need to be completed:

Specification Reason box wording
Third party
administered scheme
and line 4.7.1.1 > R0

In respect of which employees are the post retirement benefits due?

Part 4.8 Trade and Other Payables

Line 4.8.1 (Reported claims not yet paid) should include all the scheme’s claims creditors (including
outstanding cheques relating to reported claims not yet paid that were written back to trade and other
payables). It should be noted that the reported claims not yet paid must be equal to part 4.11.1.3 (Direct
benefits reported not yet paid) (Total column).
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All outstanding cheques relating to expenses other than claims that have been written back to trade and
other payables should be included in other payables and accrued expenses (4.8.11). The nature of these
expenses must also be included.

Stale cheques are those long outstanding cheques that have not yet been cashed, but have also not yet
prescribed.

The scheme should include all related party credit balances at year-end in 4.8.6.5 (unless the return
provides for that related party in another specific line). These balances should correspond with the scheme’s
related party disclosure note in terms if IAS 24 in its audited financial statements. The nature of the related
party relationship should also be indicated. Balances captured in this line would also pull through
automatically to part 4.26.2.

The current portion of non-current borrowings and other non-current liabilities (4.8.7) pulls automatically
through from parts 4.6.4 (Total of current borrowings) and 4.7.2.2 (Current portion included in current
liabilities).

The current portion of post-retirement benefits pulls automatically through from part 4.7.2.1.

It should be noted that all unallocated deposits should be disclosed separately in part 4.8.9 and should not
be netted off against outstanding contributions in part 4.3.1 of the return.

The scheme should ensure that they disclose every creditor in the specific line provided for.  Other payables
and accrued expenses (4.8.11) should only be used if the return did not make provision for that specific
creditor.

The scheme should furthermore NOT aggregate all its sundry creditor balances together in one line item in
other payables and accrued expenses (4.8.11).  Any balance greater than 10% of the total trade and other
payables should be disclosed separately in part 4.8.11.

It is important to note that the provision for outstanding claims is not included in this section, but disclosed in
part 4.9.

When certain specifications are met, the following reason boxes need to be completed:

Specification Reason box wording
Line 4.8.6.1 > (Line
4.16.1.2  current year
both columns / 12)

What is the nature of/the reasons for the amount owed to the administrator?
The amount owed is larger than the average fee per month.

Line 4.8.6.3 > (- Line
6.1.7.1 total column /
12)

What is the nature of/the reasons for the amount owed to brokers? The
amount owed is larger than the average fee per month.

If line 4.8.6.4 > ((Line
4.12.7 total column +
lines 4.13.1.1 –
4.13.1.7) consolidated
total / 12)

What is the nature of/the reasons for the amount owed to accredited
managed care organisations? The amount owed is larger than the average
fee per month.

If 4.8.8 > (4.8.14 x 10%) Part 4.8: What is the nature of/the reasons for the amount owed to members
in line 4.8.8?
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Specification Reason box wording
Line 4.8.9 > (Line 6.1.1
total column / 12)

What is the nature of/the reasons for the unallocated deposits? The amount
owed is larger than the average gross contributions per month.

Third party
administered scheme
and line 4.8.10 > R0

In respect of which employees are the post retirement benefits due?

If lines 4.8.5 + 4.8.7 >
R0

Please indicate whether the scheme obtained approval from Council to
directly or indirectly borrow money, as is required by section 35(6)(c) of the
Medical Schemes Act.

Please note that the queries raised in this part are linked to other parts in the return. After completing the
return in full it will be necessary to return to this part, and address the queries.

Part 4.9 Outstanding Claims Provision
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Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

The outstanding claims provision (total) (column A) consists out of the following categories:
a) Outstanding claims provision (not covered by risk transfer arrangements) (column B)
b) Outstanding claims provision (covered by commercial reinsurance contracts) (column C)
c) Outstanding claims provision (covered by other risk transfer arrangements) (column D)

Please refer to explanation provided in 4.3(a) in respect of other risk transfer arrangements. Also refer to the
SAICA Guide for further details.

The balance at the beginning of the year as previously reported (4.9.1.1) (columns A - D) pulls automatically
through from the closing balance per the previous year’s return in part 4.9.8.

Any prior year adjustments should be reflected in part 4.9.1.2 (prior year adjustment). A reason box will
need to be completed to explain any such adjustments.

The outstanding claims provision at the end of the year (covered by commercial reinsurance contracts)
(column C) must agree with part 4.3.4.1.1 (a) (commercial reinsurance contracts: share of outstanding
claims provision).

The outstanding claims provision at the end of the year (covered by other risk transfer arrangements)
(column D) must agree with part 4.3.4.2.1 (a) (other risk transfer arrangements: share of outstanding claims
provision).

The scheme should at all times be able to explain any over or under provision of the prior year’s outstanding
claims provision. The reason box will require further details in respect of over/under provisions greater than
10% of the previous year’s provision.

The liability adequacy test (LAT) provision adjustment in line 4.9.5 should be made in terms of IFRS 4.
(Please refer to guidance provided in the SAICA Guide.)

The provision is net of estimated recoveries from members for co-payments and savings plan accounts.
Thus, the provision is only calculated on the claims that the scheme has a liability to pay for. It should further
be noted that the totals per line 4.9.8.5 should agree with the totals in line 4.9.8.
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Part 4.10 Risk Contribution Income

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

Gross contributions are the amounts incurred by members, in terms of the registered rules of the scheme,
for the purchase of healthcare benefits. Gross contributions include savings contributions. Therefore, any
subsidies received from an employer, over and above the contributions per the registered rules of the
scheme should not form part of gross contributions.  These subsidies should be disclosed in other income in
parts 6.1.17 and 4.23.31 of the return.

Also, important to note that any prescribed unallocated deposits should also not form part of gross
contributions; as these amounts are not in line with the scheme’s current year’s registered contribution table.
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Any prescribed unallocated deposits should be disclosed in other income in parts 6.1.17 and 4.23.31 of the
return.

Any contributions written off, which is not recoverable, should not be deducted from risk contributions; any
write-offs of contribution income should form part of impairment losses: Trade and other receivables in parts
6.1.9.10 and 4.23.24 of the return.

Contribution income is recognised in the accounting period to which the related risks refer. For this reason,
any unpaid contributions at the end of the accounting period are reflected as current assets, and any
contributions received in advance are reflected as current liabilities.  These amounts are disclosed
separately in trade and other receivables (part 4.3) or trade and other payables (part 4.8).

In accordance with sections 26(1)(c) and 26(4) of the Act, a scheme is not allowed to collect fees payable by
a member to a third party, e.g. a funeral fund/wellness programmes on behalf of that third party.  Therefore,
gross contributions should not include any such fees. Should any fees of this nature exist, it should be
disclosed as a liability in part 4.8 of the return.

Schemes will be required to provide more details if no gross contributions were accrued during the year.

Part 4.11 Relevant Healthcare Expenditure

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:
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Only positive figures will be accepted in the other lines.

Net relevant healthcare expenditure incurred in respect of risk carried by the scheme (including
claims incurred in respect of commercial reinsurance contracts) (Column B)

Gross claims paid and reported
Total costs of settling all claims (before deducting claims paid from savings accounts) arising from
healthcare events that have occurred in the period and those that have occurred previously (gross claims
reported), and for which no provision was made, including costs for managed care: healthcare services (no
transfer of risk).

There is a validation rule testing that when the scheme had an outstanding claims provision in line 4.11.7,
line 4.11.1.2 should have a value greater than zero. This validation rule tests both Columns B and C.

The direct benefits reported not yet paid in line 4.11.1.3 should be greater or equal to the share of claims
reported not yet paid in line 4.3.4.1.2.

Accredited Managed Healthcare Services (no transfer of risk)
All accredited managed health care services are included under healthcare expenditure, as managed health
care services as defined in the Medical Schemes Act directly impact the delivery of cost-effective and
appropriate (evidence-based medicine) healthcare benefits to beneficiaries of medical schemes.

The amount per part 4.11.1.4 pulls through from the Consolidated total Accredited managed healthcare
services (no transfer of risk) in line 4.12.7.

Services provided to members in own facilities
Line 4.11.1.5 should be greater than zero when there is a value in line 4.21.3.

Net claims incurred
Claims assessed, accrued and paid for services rendered during the accounting period and for services
rendered during the previous accounting period not included in the previous period’s outstanding claims
provision, net of recoveries from members for co-payments and savings plan accounts and discounts
received.

Provision for outstanding claims
The provision for outstanding claims at the end of the financial year in part 4.11.6 (column B) automatically
pulls through from part 4.9.8 ((column B) (outstanding claims provision not covered by risk transfer
arrangements) + (column C) (outstanding claims provision covered by commercial reinsurance contracts at
end of year)).
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The provision for outstanding claims at the end of the previous financial year in part 4.11.7 (column B)
automatically pulls through from 4.9.1 ((column B) outstanding claims provision not covered by risk transfer
arrangements + (column C) (outstanding claims provision covered by commercial reinsurance contracts at
end of year)).

Net relevant healthcare expenditure incurred in respect of related risk transfer arrangements
(excluding claims incurred in respect of commercial reinsurance contracts) (Column C)

Please note that this part must only be completed if the risk transfer arrangement (capitation agreement)
meets the definition of a reinsurance contract in terms of IFRS 4. IFRS 4 requires the scheme to assess
each contract separately to determine whether there is a significant transfer of insurance risk.

In the event that a capitation agreement meets the definition of a reinsurance agreement, IFRS 4 states that
an insurer shall not offset risk transfer assets against the related insurance liabilities or income or expense
from risk transfer arrangements against the expense or income from the related insurance contracts.

The cost that the scheme would have incurred (had it not entered into the capitation agreement) to deliver
the specified benefits represents the scheme’s exposure to its member (as the capitation agreement cannot
absolve a medical scheme from its responsibility towards its members). These “costs” have to be disclosed
in 4.11.1.1 and/or 4.11.1.2 and/or 4.11.1.3 as claims incurred from insurance contracts. The claims included
in these parts should also include claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. (Please refer to the
relevant SAICA Guide Appendix.) There is a validation rule testing that when the scheme had an
outstanding claims provision in line 4.11.7, line 4.11.1.2 should have a value greater than zero.

The cost that the scheme would have incurred (had it not entered into the capitation agreement) to deliver
the specified benefits represents the scheme’s recovery in kind from the managed healthcare provider. This
recovery in kind of cost incurred has to be disclosed as recoveries from risk transfer arrangements (4.13.2).
The recovery included in part 4.13.2 must also include the recovery in respect of the risk transfer asset
raised at year end.

Please take note that the above estimate claims incurred and estimated claims recoveries may not be
offset.

The direct benefits reported not yet paid in line 4.11.1.3 should be equal to the share of claims reported not
yet paid in line 4.3.4.12.2.

As amounts should only be included in 4.11.1.4 if there was no transfer of risk from the scheme to the
accredited managed healthcare service provider in terms of IFRS 4, these fields are fixed as zeros in
column C.

Similarly are lines 4.11.2 (savings plan claims paid) and 4.11.3 (discount received on claims) also fixed as
zeros.

The provision for outstanding claims at the end of the financial year in part 4.11.6 (column C) automatically
pulls through from part 4.9.8 (column D) (outstanding claims provision covered by other risk transfer
arrangements).

The provision for outstanding claims at the end of the previous financial year in part 4.11.7 (column C)
automatically pulls through from 4.9.1 (column D) (outstanding claims provision covered by other risk
transfer arrangements).
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Part 4.11.9 (net (income)/expense from risk transfer arrangements) column C (net claims incurred in respect
of related risk transfer arrangements (excluding claims incurred in respect of commercial reinsurance
contracts) automatically pulls through from part 4.13.4 (net (income)/expense from other risk transfer
arrangements- consolidated total current year column). Part 4.11.9 column B is a fixed zero field.

Part 4.12 Accredited Managed Healthcare Services (No Transfer of Risk)

This part makes provision for a split of all accredited managed healthcare services provided by accredited
managed care organisations.

This part should be completed per contract. The names of the various contracts will be pulled through from
the detail completed in part 1.4, question 6(a). In the event that the response to question 6(a) indicates that
a specific contract did not exist in respect of either the current or previous year, such annum’s amounts
would be fixed as zeros.
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The previous year’s amounts automatically pull through from the previous year’s return. The “Unlock
previous year amounts” button allows the scheme to make adjustments to these figures if needs be. The
scheme would then need to provide the reasons for any prior year adjustments.

The scheme will only be able to capture amounts relating to accredited managed healthcare services
provided by the accredited managed care organisations in part 4.12. All non-accredited services provided
need to be included in part 4.16.3.

The total amount per line 4.12.7 pulls through to part 4.11.1 line 4.11.1.4.

Part 4.13 Net (income)/expenses from other risk transfer arrangements (excluding
commercial reinsurance contracts)

This part should be completed per contract (“other” risk transfer arrangement-capitation agreement). The
names of the various contracts for both the current and previous financial years will be pulled through from
the detail completed in part 1.4, question 6(b). In the event that the response to question 6(b) indicates that
a specific contract did not exist in respect of either the current or previous year, such annum’s amounts
would be fixed as zeros.

The previous year’s amounts automatically pull through from the previous year’s return. The “Unlock
previous year amounts” button allows the scheme to make adjustments to these figures if needs be. The
scheme would then need to provide the reasons for any prior year adjustments.
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Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

Important to note that this part should only be completed if the capitation agreement meets the definition of
a reinsurance contract in terms of IFRS 4. IFRS 4 requires the scheme to assess each contract separately
to determine whether there is a significant transfer of insurance risk. For additional guidance on risk transfer
arrangements, please refer the SAICA Guide.

The premiums/fees paid (capitation fees) should be captured in part 4.13.1, split between the various
accredited managed healthcare benefits and other (non-accredited) capitation services contracted. The
estimated claim recovery (as explained in part 4.11under net claims in respect of related risk transfer
arrangements) should be captured in part 4.13.2.  The return requires a more detailed split of the recoveries
as is required in respect of the capitation fee paid. Please note that this figure should be a negative figure,
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as claims recoveries is a credit balance. Again the amount should be split between the various services
contracted.

The scheme will only be able to capture amounts relating to accredited managed healthcare services
provided by the accredited managed care organisations in part 4.13. The other lines (4.13.1.9 and 4.13.2.9)
should only be used if the return did not make provision for a specific non-accredited service.

Any other transactions not provided for in part 4.13.1 and part 4.13.2 should be captured in part 4.13.3
(other).  The details of these transactions should be provided; this would include profit/(loss) sharing
arrangements, etc.

It should further be noted that Part 4.13.2 (Less: Claims recoveries in respect of related risk transfer
arrangements consolidated total current year column) should agree with:
· the sum of Part 4.11.1.1 to 4.11.1.3 (Column C: direct benefits in respect of related risk transfer

arrangements (excluding claims incurred in respect of commercial reinsurance contracts)); and
· plus the difference movement in the provision for outstanding claims in respect of related risk transfer

arrangements (excluding claims incurred in respect of commercial reinsurance contracts) in lines 4.11.6
and 4.11.7 (Column C).

When certain specifications are met, the following reason boxes need to be completed:

Specification Reason box wording
(Per contract current
year lines 4.13.1 +
4.13.2)/Per contract
current year line 4.13.1
> 50% or if < 50%

Please provide the basis for the calculation of the estimated claims
recoveries in respect of related risk transfer arrangements.

Previous year figures
were restated.

The scheme is required to provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements.
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Part 4.14 Net income/ (expenses) from risk transfer arrangements: commercial
reinsurance contracts

This part should be completed per reinsurance contract. The names of the various contracts will be pulled
through from the detail completed in part 1.4, question 6(c):

A reinsurance contract is defined by IFRS 4 as an insurance contract issued by one insurer (the reinsurer)
to compensate another insurer (the cedant) for losses on one or more contracts issued by the cedant.
Contracts which meet the definition of reinsurance contracts in IFRS 4 are referred to as risk transfer
arrangements in the SAICA Guide. Income and expenses relating to risk transfer arrangements are
disclosed separately in the statement of comprehensive income.
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A medical scheme may also enter into commercial reinsurance contracts, in terms of which it transfers some
or all of its risk to a legally registered reinsurer. In this instance the reinsurer will compensate the medical
scheme in cash for losses incurred.

It should be noted that all reinsurance contracts should be submitted to the Registrar in terms of
section 20(3) of the Act.

Prepaid re-insurance premiums are included in current assets in part 4.3 of the return.
Profit/ (loss) on a commercial reinsurance arrangements (4.14.4) should be recognised either as a debtor or
creditor over the period of risk covered by the policy that covers a period for more than one year.  Please
note that this is not the difference between the claims recovered and the premiums paid, but the profit/ (loss)
share in terms of the commercial reinsurance contract.

The commissions on commercial reinsurance arrangements (4.14.5) and discounts received (4.14.6) are as
specified in the actual commercial reinsurance contract.

Please note that all expenses in respect of commercial reinsurance contracts must be captured as a
negative amount and all income in respect of commercial reinsurance contracts as a positive amount:
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Part 4.15(a)  Broker service fees

A scheme may compensate a person, in accordance with its rules and the provisions of the Act and the
regulations, for services provided to the scheme’s members. Broker service fees usually accrue and are
paid on a monthly basis as contributions are received. Amounts paid and payable for broker services
comprise fees paid to brokers for new contracts initiated by the brokers “ongoing fees” in respect of current
contracts. Acquisition costs are the costs that an insurer incurs to sell, underwrite and initiate a new
insurance contract. Consideration should be given to related party relationships in transactions relating to
brokers.

When certain specifications are met, the following reason boxes need to be completed:

Specification Reason box wording
4.15.3/12/2.2.13
(Members)) > R91.20

Why does the broker fee per average member per month exceed the
statutory limit of R96.90?

4.15.3 > (4.10.1 x
3.42%)

Why do the broker fees exceed the statutory limit of 3.42% of gross
contributions?
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Part 4.15(b)  Other distribution costs

Distribution costs that are incurred under co-administration or other arrangements are included under
administration expenses in the statement of comprehensive income and are separately disclosed in the
notes, unless those fees are paid to brokers. Where those distribution fees are paid to brokers, they are
included as part of brokers’ service fees.

The scheme should ensure that an accurate split between broker fees and distribution costs are made
between part 4.15(a) and part 4.15(b). The scheme should furthermore ensure no distribution costs are
included in part 4.16 (administration expenses).

Distribution costs do not include marketing and advertising expenses unless those expenses are paid to
brokers.  Marketing expenditure (including advertising costs) is included in part 4.16.22.

Consideration should be given to related party relationships and transactions relating to brokers fees and
distribution costs.  These transactions should correspond with the scheme’s related party disclosure note in
terms if IAS 24 in its audited financial statements.

The scheme should specify the distribution costs in part 4.15.2 per individual party; all distribution costs
should not be aggregated and disclosed as one line item in part 4.15.2.
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Part 4.16.1 Administration Expenses

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

The previous year’s amounts are automatically pulled through from the previous year’s return. The “Unlock
previous year amounts” button allows the scheme to make adjustments to these figures if needs be. The
scheme would then need to provide the reasons for any prior year restatements/reclassifications.

The scheme should ensure that they disclose every expense in the specific line provided for in part 4.16 of
the return.  Other administration expenses (4.16.1.37) should only be used if the return did not make
provision for that specific expense.

Association fees (4.16.1.4) relate to fees paid to non-professional organisations, e.g. BHF membership etc.
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Administration expenditure: benefit management services (not accredited managed care) pulls through from
the Total Fund and Own Facilities columns (both current and previous year) in part 4.16.3.

In the event that a scheme entered an amount in line 4.16.1.11 (co-administration fees paid for ongoing
services provided by third parties), but no such contracts exists in part 1.1, the scheme would be required to
provide more information on the nature of the services, including the name of the provider.

Consultancy fees (4.16.1.13) are those fees paid where the board of trustees obtained expert advice on
legal, accounting and/or any other business matter of which the members of the board of trustees may lack
sufficient expertise.

Council for Medical Schemes expenses (4.16.1.14) are any other fees paid to the Council for Medical
Schemes such as rule registration fees etc. It also includes membership levies paid to the Council for
Medical Schemes. Penalties incurred should however not be included in this line, but in line 4.16.1.25.

The depreciation included in part 4.16.1.16 should agree with the total depreciation charges included in part
4.1.2.2.

In the event that the scheme has not incurred any expenses in respect of fidelity guarantee insurance fees
(4.16.1.18) or professional indemnity insurance premiums (4.16.1.29), the scheme will be required to
complete a reason box, indicating the reasons for not incurring the said expenditure (non-compliance with
the requirements imposed by section 57(4)(f)).

Investigation fees (4.16.1.20) will include any special investigations initiated by the scheme (including fraud
investigations).

Please note that marketing expenditure (including advertising) (4.16.1.22) exclude fees paid to brokers as
well as any distribution costs, which are disclosed under part 4.15 of the return.

Principal Officer / curator fees and remuneration (4.16.1.26.1) should include all fees and remuneration paid
to the Principal Officer (or curator where applicable), which is regarded as remuneration for his own benefit.

Principal Officer / curator travel and other expenses incurred (4.16.1.26.2) should include all fees paid to the
Principal Officer (or curator where applicable) in terms of where the Principal Officer (or curator) were
reimbursed for expenses incurred that did not form part of his remuneration/fees. This also includes fees
paid on behalf of the Principal Officer (or curator) (e.g. travelling, accommodation etc.).

Please note that penalties in part 4.16.1.25 should include those penalties paid to the Registrar.

Professional fees (4.16.1.28) relate to membership fees paid to associations in respect of individuals (i.e.
accountants, nurses, doctors etc.).

Travel, accommodation and conferences (4.16.1.34) should include all cost incurred in respect of travel,
accommodation and conferences. However, these costs should exclude the cost incurred with regards to
the Principal Officer and trustees, which should be included in 4.16.1.26.2 and 4.16.1.35.4 respectively.

The trustee remuneration expenses in part 4.16.1.37 pulls automatically through from part 4.17:
· 4.16.1.35.1: Trustees’ remuneration: Board pulls through from Parts 4.17.2 (Total column) - Fees for

meeting attendance: Board + 4.17.2 (Total column) - Fees for holding of office: Board + 4.17.2 (Total
column) – Allowances;
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· 4.16.1.35.2: Trustees’ remuneration: Sub-committees pulls through from Parts 4.17.2 (Total column) -
Fees for meeting attendance: Sub-committees + 4.17.2 (Total column) - Fees for holding of office: Sub-
committees;

· 4.16.1.35.3: Services provided pulls through from Part 4.17.2 (Total column) - Fees for consultancy
services; and

· 4.16.1.35.4: Reimbursements and other expenditure pulls through from Parts 4.17.2 (Total column) -
Training + 4.17.2 (Total column) - Conference fees + 4.17.2 (Total column) - Telephone expenses +
4.17.2 (Total column) - Accommodation, travel and meals + 4.17.2 (Total column) - Other
disbursements and reimbursements.

The scheme should not aggregate all its other administration expenses together in one line item in part
4.16.1.37. Every expense greater than 10% of the total administration expenses should be disclosed
separately in part 4.16.1.39.

Where a scheme received a subsidy or refund from any third party for administration expenses incurred by
the scheme, those subsidies should not be included in part 4.16.1.37.  Any such subsidies should be
included in ‘other income’ in part 6.1.17 of the return.  The Office wants to see the total costs to administer
the scheme in part 4.16.1.

Part 4.16.2 Breakdown of Composite Administration Fee Paid

This part only generates in respect of third party administered schemes.
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Regulation 18 of the Act requires that the scope and duties of the administrator and its remuneration (as
well as the basis on which the remuneration is determined) be clearly specified in the administration
agreement.

In terms of Circular 48 of 2014 administrators and medical schemes are required to clearly distinguish
between the various types of services delivered in terms of the administrator agreement when completing
the Annual Statutory Return.

The previous year’s amounts are automatically pulled through from the previous year’s return. The “Unlock
previous year amounts” button allows the scheme to make adjustments to these figures if needs be. The
scheme would then need to provide the reasons for any prior year restatements.

The following validation rules exist to ensure the completeness of Part 4.16.2:
· Actuarial services: Part 4.16.1.1 Current year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal to or

greater than Part 4.16.2.1 Current year;
· Actuarial services: Part 4.16.1.1 Previous year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal to or

greater than Part 4.16.2.1 Previous year;
· Fidelity and indemnity insurance : Part 4.16.1.18 Current year Fund and Own facilities columns and

Part 4.16.1.29 Current year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal to or greater than
Part 4.16.2.3 Current year;

· Fidelity and indemnity insurance : Part 4.16.1.18 Previous year Fund and Own facilities columns and
Part 4.16.1.29 Previous year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal to or greater than
Part 4.16.2.3 Previous year;

· Internal audit: Part 4.16.1.7 Current year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal to or greater
than Part 4.16.2.6 Current year;

· Internal audit: Part 4.16.1.7 Previous year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal to or
greater than Part 4.16.2.6 Previous year;

· Marketing expenditure  (inclusive of advertising): Part 4.16.1.22 Current year Fund and Own facilities
columns should be equal to or greater than Part 4.16.2.7 Current year; and

· Marketing expenditure  (inclusive of advertising): Part 4.16.1.22 Previous year Fund and Own facilities
columns should be equal to or greater than Part 4.16.2.7 Previous year;

· Printing and stationary: Part 4.16.1.27 Current year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal to
or greater than Part 4.16.2.8 Current year; and

· Printing and stationary: Part 4.16.1.27 Previous year Fund and Own facilities columns should be equal
to or greater than Part 4.16.2.8 Previous year.
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Part 4.16.3 Administration Expenditure: Benefit Management Services (Not Accredited
Managed Care)

It should be noted that there is a distinct difference between disease management programmes, which
makes use of the different techniques as mentioned in the definitions provided in Circular 13 of 2014, versus
wellness programmes and nurse-advice lines.

Wellness programmes might be in the form of outreach programmes where members are sent for general
evaluations (blood pressure, non-fasting glucose test, non-fasting total cholesterol test, weight, eyes, etc.) or
it may be in the form of a benefit once yearly for instance a prostate antigen test that will be funded by the
scheme (and not from the members’ Personal Medical Savings Accounts). This type of services does not
make use of the techniques as specified in the definition of managed healthcare.

The same apply for nurse advice lines which are accessed ad hoc, and where the nurse has access to a
database of information and only relays the information, which might include a referral to a doctor. None of
the managed care techniques are used for these services – it is also not possible to really measure or
monitor these services for efficacy or effectiveness.

Other items to be included in this category are inter alia medical advisors, claims review and auditing,
provider network management, etc. (where these services are not integral to the managed care services
listed in Circular 13 of 2014).

These services are included in non-healthcare expenditure, the details of which is provided in part 4.16.3.
The total in line 4.16.3.14 automatically pulls through to part 4.16.1, line 4.16.1.3.
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The previous year’s amounts are automatically pulled through from the previous year’s return. The “Unlock
previous year amounts” button allows the scheme to make adjustments to these figures if needs be. The
scheme would then need to provide the reasons for any prior year restatements.

Part 4.16.4 Marketing Expenditure (Inclusive of Advertising)

This part should be completed per contract. The names of the various contracts will be pulled through from
the detail completed in part 1.4, question 6(f)(i). In the event that the response to question 6(f)(i) indicates
that a specific contract did not exist in respect of either the current or previous year, such annum’s amounts
would be fixed as zeros.
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Where a scheme did not have any marketing / advertising agreements, but did incur such expenditure, the
scheme would need to provide details of such expenditure in the ad-hoc expenditure column.

Kindly note that when the response in part 1.4 question 6(f)(i) is changed from “No” to “Yes to indicate the
existence of contracts, part 4.16.4 is reloaded and any information already entered in the ad-hoc
expenditure column will  be lost.

The previous year’s amounts would automatically pull through from the previous year’s return. The “Unlock
previous year amounts” button allows the scheme to make adjustments to these figures if needs be. The
scheme would then need to provide the reasons for any prior year adjustments.

The user will only be able to delete entries created in the current upon clicking the “Unlock previous year
amounts” button. This was built in as a safety measure to ensure that users do not delete entries by
mistake. Entries pulled through from the previous year are not delete-able.

The total amount per line 4.16.4.2  in respect of both the current and the previous year should agree with
the amounts captured in part 4.16.1 line 4.16.1.22 (fund and own facilities columns).

Part 4.17 Trustee Remuneration and Considerations

Please note that the names of the trustees automatically pull through from part 1.3.1. This would
encompass the names of all the trustees that were trustees during the financial year, including those
trustees that have resigned within the financial year. Trustees appointed in the new financial year (effective
1 January 2017), will not be reflected.
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As per section 57(8) of the Medical schemes Act 131 of 1998 as amended, the members of the board of
trustees shall disclose annually in writing to the Registrar any payment or considerations made to them in
that particular year by the medical scheme. Therefore all scheme expenditure relating to trustees must be
disclosed per trustee member in this section, and not only trustee remuneration. The scheme should also
ensure the correct disclosure of fees received by the trustees in respect of services rendered to related
parties (i.e. subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and significant control) to the scheme.

The scheme should further ensure that an accurate split is made between the different kinds of payments
made in respect of the trustees, as requested in the return.

Part 4.18 Provision for impaired losses at year-end
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Part 4.18 requires a reconciliation of the provision for impaired losses for the year (columns A to E) and a
breakdown of the amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (columns B, C, and F to
H).

The columns should therefore be completed as follows:

Column A: Positive amount – This represents the balance of the provision for impaired losses at the
beginning of the year
Column B: Negative amount – This represent unused provisions reversed during the year to the statement
of comprehensive income.
Column C: Positive amount – This represent additional provisions that were made during the year.
Column D: Negative Amount – This represent provisions utilised during the year (amounts written off directly
against the provision).
Column E: Positive amount – This represents the balance of the provision for impaired losses at year-end.
Column F: Positive amount – This represent impaired losses that were recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income, and not against the provision.
Column G: Negative amount – This column represents previous impairment losses that were recovered.
Column H: This constitutes the net effect in the statement of comprehensive income, and can therefore be
either positive or negative, depending on the nature of the transaction flows.

The amount per part 4.18.6 (Total) (column E) must agree with part 4.3.4.1.3 (provision for impaired losses
at year end – commercial reinsurance contracts) plus part 4.3.4.2.3 (provision for impaired losses at year
end - other risk transfer arrangements) plus part 4.3.14 (provision for impaired losses at year end (excluding
risk transfer arrangements)).

The amount per part 4.18.6 (Total) (column H) must agree with the sum of part 4.23.24 (consolidated
column – Net impairment losses: Trade and other receivables) and part 4.23.26 (consolidated column - Net
impairment losses: Other).

Any other transactions not specifically provided for in part 4.18 should be captured in part 4.18.5 (other),
such as impairment losses on risk transfer arrangements. Thus, the movement in the provision for impaired
losses relating to risk transfer arrangements (please refer to 4.3.4.1.3 and 4.3.4.2.3) should also be included
in 4.18.5 (other).

Please note that the value calculated in column E (Provision for impaired losses at year-end) is the sum of
columns A to D. The value of column H (Total movement in statement of comprehensive income for the
year) is calculated as the sum of columns B, C, F and G.
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Example:

20x0

Debtor X had an outstanding balance of R1 000 at 31 December 20x0.
-  A provision for impaired losses in respect of debtor X was raised at 31 December 20x0 of R600.
The scheme’s total provision for impaired losses at 31 December 20x0 was R5 000.
- R1 000 of this provision was in respect of debtor Y. (Amounts owed in respect of member's portions of

claims that are not recoverable).
- R3 400 was in respect of amounts owed by service providers that are not recoverable.



Help File: 2017 Annual Statutory Return

Page 73 of 142

20x1

1. During the 20x1 financial year debtor X was liquidated and the total amount of R1 000 was written off.
- The amount of R600 included in the provision for impairment losses at 31 December 20x0 was written

off directly against debtor X’s account (Dt Provision for impaired losses R600, Ct Debtors R600).
- The additional R400 was written off in the statement of comprehensive income in the 20x1 financial

year (Dt I/S R400, Ct Debtors 400).
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2. The scheme recovered an amount of R300 in the 2010 financial year in respect of amounts previously
written off (Dt Bank R300, Ct I/S R300) (Amounts owed by service providers that are not recoverable).
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Debtor Y’s repayment of debt improved substantially during the year, and the provision of R1 000 was
written back (Dt Provision for impaired losses R1 000, Ct I/S R1 000).
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3. During the 20x1 financial year an additional provision in respect of the scheme’s debtors (excluding
debtors X and Y) of R1 500 was raised
(Dt I/S R1 500, Ct Provision for impaired losses R1 500).

The transactions will have to be included in the return as follows:

Column A: R5 000 (balance at beginning of year)
Column B: -R1 000 (debtor Y’s unused amount reversed)
Column C: R1 500 (additional provision during the year)
Column D: -R600 (debtor X amount utilised during the year)
Column E: R5 000 – R1 000 + R1 500 – R600 = R4 900 (balance at end of year)
Column F: R400 (Debtor X’s amount written off directly in the statement of comprehensive income)
Column G: -R300 (previous impairment losses recovered)
Column H: -R1 000 + R1 500 + R400 – R300 = R600 (net effect in statement of comprehensive

income)
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Part 4.19 Other Investment Income

Please note that any fees paid to asset managers should be disclosed separately in part 6.1.14 (investment
management fees).

Furthermore, the direct operating expenses on rental of investment property should also be included in
part 6.1.15.

Important to note that realised gains/ (losses) on the disposal of investments should not form part of other
investment income; all realised gains/ (loses) should be included in part 4.20.

For purposes of the return, please note that interest received on bank accounts should be included in part
4.19 (other investment income) and not part 6.1.17 (other income):
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Important to note that any interest paid by the scheme on borrowings or credit balances as well as interest
paid on savings plan accounts are disclosed as part of finance costs in part 4.22, and should not be
deducted from investment income. Income received from the PMSA trust investment should be disclosed
separately in line 4.19.3.

The scheme should furthermore not aggregate all its investment income in one line item in part 4.19.2. The
scheme should ensure that they disclose every type of investment income separately in the specific line
provided for in part 4.19.  Other investment income (4.19.2) should only be used if the return does not make
provision for that type of investment income.

Part 4.20 Other Realised and Unrealised Gains/ (Losses)

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments held at fair value through profit or
loss are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.  Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the available-for-sale investments are included in the available-for-
sale reserve and statement of other comprehensive income.  Once an available-for-sale investment is sold,
the realised fair value gain or loss on the changes in the fair value of the available-for-sale investments is
included in the income statement.

Only the movement through the income statement is accounted for in this part.

The scheme should furthermore not aggregate all its realised and unrealised gains and losses in one line
item in part 4.20.6. The scheme should ensure that they individually disclose all realised and unrealised
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gains and losses in the specific line provided for in part 4.20.  Other (4.20.6) should only be used if the
return does not make provision for that type of realised and unrealised gains and losses.

Part 4.21 Own Facility Surplus/ (Deficit)

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

Total cost incurred in operating own facilities
Costs incurred by the healthcare funder in operating its own medical equipment, hospital, clinic, pathology
laboratory and radiology facility or any other related service on behalf of members.

4.21.1 (Income from services rendered to third parties) arises from making the scheme’s own facilities
available and rendering services to third parties, and is recognised on an accrual basis. This will not include
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any income from the scheme’s members; only the non-related contributions income and claims expenditure
are disclosed as part of own facility surplus or deficit.

The claims related expenditure paid on behalf of the scheme’s members is shown as part of claims incurred,
and the contributions received are disclosed as part of gross contributions. Hence, the cost of services
provided to members included in net claims incurred (4.21.2.5) automatically pulls through from
part 4.11.1.5 (Services provided to members in own facilities (column A)).

The scheme should disclose the total costs of operating the own facility in part 4.21.2 (and not only those
costs that relate to services rendered to third parties). The total cost incurred in operating own facility
(4.21.2) consists of the sum of the following costs:
· 4.21.2.1 – total healthcare provider costs
· 4.21.2.2 – changes in inventories
· 4.21.2.3 – administrative expenditure
· 4.21.2.4 – other costs incurred in operating own facility

The administrative expenditure incurred in operating the own facility in part 4.21.2.3 automatically pulls
through from part 4.16.1.40 (current year: own facility column). Please note that although it is shown as part
of administration expenses in part 4.16.1, it will not be included in the statement of comprehensive income
as part of the administration expense, but as part of the own facility surplus/ (deficit) in line 6.1.18.

Part 4.22 Finance Costs
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When considered to be material, finance costs are disclosed separately on the face of the statement of
comprehensive income, and does not form part of investment income.

Finance costs include interest paid on savings plan accounts, and should not be netted off against interest
received on savings plan accounts.

The scheme should not aggregate all its finance costs in one line item in part 4.22.3. The scheme should
ensure that they disclose every type of finance costs separately in the specific line provided for in part 4.22.
Other finance costs (4.22.3) should only be used if the return did not make provision for that type of finance
cost.

Part 4.23 Net Surplus/ (Deficit) per Benefit Option

The option names captured in part 1.2 automatically pulls through to part 4.23.
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Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

The results of each benefit option under a medical scheme are to be separately disclosed, and the
accounting records are to be maintained in such a way that the financial results for each benefit option can
be determined.

The other column provided should be used to capture any transactions in this financial year which relates to
options that were discontinued at the beginning of the financial year, for which the scheme incurred some
expenses or received some income.

Any other transactions not provided for in part 4.23.17.1 and part 4.23.17.2 should be captured in part
4.23.17.3 (other).  The details of these transactions should be provided.

Details (per nature of transaction) of the following income and expenses should also be provided in the
different parts:
· Net impairment losses: Other (4.23.25)
· Other income (4.23.30)
· Other expenses (4.23.32)

The detailed entries in lines 4.23.25, 4.23.30 and 4.23.32 automatically pull through to part 6.1, and are
matched against the previous year’s detail.  The detailed descriptions used in the previous year’s return
automatically pull through from part 6.1. Where a prior year entry’s description needs to be amended, the
user would need to make the change to the description in part 6.1 (by using the “Unlock previous year
amounts” button) before a similar entry is created in part 4.23.

The consolidated column (the sum of the individual option results) in part 4.23 should agree on a line by line
basis to the individual amounts in the income statement.

The consolidated column’s lines should also agree to the following parts:

Consolidated Column Line Should agree to part
4.23.1 4.10.1 - Gross contributions per registered rules
4.23.2 4.10.2 - Less: Savings contributions received
4.23.4.1 4.11.1.1- Direct benefits for the period (Column B)
4.23.4.2 4.11.1.2- Direct benefits for the previous period (Column B)
4.23.4.3 4.11.1.3 - Direct benefits reported not yet paid (Column B)
4.23.4.4 4.11.1.4 – Accredited managed healthcare services (no transfer of risk)

(Total)
4.23.4.7 4.11.1.5 - Services provided to members in own facilities (Total)



Help File: 2017 Annual Statutory Return

Page 83 of 142

Consolidated Column Line Should agree to part
4.23.5 4.11.2 Less: Savings plan claims paid (Total)
4.23.6 4.11.3 - Less: Discount received on claims (Total)
4.23.7 4.11.4 - Less: Claims recoveries from third parties (Total)
4.23.9 4.11.6 - Provision for outstanding claims at the end of the financial year

(Column B)
4.23.10 4.11.7 - Provision for outstanding claims at end of the previous year

(Column B)
4.23.12.1 4.11.1.1- Direct benefits for the period (Column C)
4.23.12.2 4.11.1.2- Direct benefits for the previous period (Column C)
4.23.12.3 4.11.1.3 - Direct benefits reported not yet paid (Column C)
4.23.14 4.11.6 - Provision for outstanding claims at the end of the financial year

(Column C)
4.23.15 4.11.7 - Provision for outstanding claims at end of the previous year

(Column C)
4.23.17 4.13.4 – Net (income)/expense from other risk transfer arrangements

(Consolidated total current year column)
4.23.17.1 4.13.1 - Premiums/fees paid (Capitation fees) (Consolidated total current

year column)
4.23.17.2 4.13.2 – Less: Claims recoveries in respect of related risk transfer

arrangements (Consolidated total current year column)
4.23.17.3 4.13.3 - (Other) (Consolidated total current year column)
4.23.18 4.11.10 - Relevant healthcare expenditure (Total)
4.23.20 4.14.7 – Net income/(expense) from commercial reinsurance

arrangements (Consolidated total)
4.23.21.1 4.15.3(a) - Broker service fees
4.23.21.2 4.15.3(b) - Other distribution costs
4.23.22 4.16.1.39 - Administration expenses (Current year: Fund)
4.23.23 + 4.23.25 4.18.6 - Column H - Total movement in statement of comprehensive

income for the year
4.23.26 4.19.4 - Total other investment income
4.23.29 4.20.7 - Total realised and unrealised gains/(losses)
4.23.31 4.21.3 - Total own facility surplus/(deficit)
4.23.33 4.22.4 - Total finance costs

For more information on “other” risk transfer arrangements to be included in 4.23.12 to 4.23.17.3, please
refer to details provided in part 4.3 (Trade and other receivables), 4.9 (Outstanding claims provision), 4.11
(Net claims incurred) and 4.13 (Net income/ (expense) from other risk transfer arrangements (excluding
commercial reinsurance contracts)).

The members and beneficiaries per benefit option in lines 4.23.37 and 4.23.38 are pulled through from
part 2.1.

If no savings contributions were received during the year, and a personal medical savings account liability
still existed at year end, the scheme will be required to supply further information regarding the procedures
in place to refund the monies, and the timing thereof.
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Part 4.24 Guarantees Supplied to Registrar in Terms of the Act

Where, in accordance with the Act, a third party has provided a guarantee to the scheme to ensure the
financial soundness of the scheme and/or it’s benefit options, details of such guarantee is disclosed in this
part.

This will be any guarantees supplied in terms of section 24(5) of the Act and/or regulation 2(1) (j) of the
Regulations to the Act; and/or sections 33(3) and 44(9) (b) of the Act.

The scheme should also indicate the name of the institution which provided such guarantee to the scheme
(i.e. a bank, the administrator etc.).
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Part 4.25 Guarantees and Suretyships for Third Parties Liabilities (Including
Contingent Liabilities)

Where the scheme has provided a guarantee and/or suretyship to a third party, details of such guarantee
and/or suretyship should be disclosed, per individual party to which such guarantee or suretyship was given.

The scheme should also list all assets individually, which were encumbered at end of the financial year end.

Whenever a scheme has completed this part, further detail in respect of Council’s approval in terms of
section 35(6) will be required.
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Part 4.26 Related Party Transactions

Due to inconsistencies experienced in the past, no differentiation between income and expenditure, as well
as debit and credit balances are required.

Potential related parties as well as related party disclosure are discussed in detail in the relevant
Appendices to the SAICA Guide. In terms of IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosure, “a related party is a person
or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity.
(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.
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(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity)”.

Based on the definition of related parties above, the scheme would need to select the appropriate nature of
relationship from the drop-down menu supplied in part 4.26 for each individual transaction/balance:
· Associate
· Control
· Joint venture
· Key management personnel
· Significant influence
· Sponsoring employer
· Subsidiary
· Other (Specify)

The individual totals per this part should agree with the scheme’s note in the audited financial statement with
regards to related party transactions (in terms of IAS 24).  The statement of comprehensive income
transactions for the year should be disclosed per party and per nature of transaction in part 4.26.1.  The
scheme should not aggregate all the statement of comprehensive income related party transactions.

The balances owing to/from related parties at year-end should be disclosed in part 4.26.2. The statement of
financial position balances for the year should be disclosed per party and per nature. The scheme should
not aggregate all the related party balances. Related party balances captured in parts 4.3.12.5 and 4.8.6.5
pull through automatically to part 4.26.2.

The following are examples of the type of information that we require for purposes of part 4.26 when a
scheme has identified an entity as a related party:

(Please note that the following examples are not considered to be an exhaustive list of all possible related
parties and transactions.)

Board of trustees/Principal officer/Executive management and their close family members
(Key management personnel)
Trustee remuneration and considerations will be pulled through as an aggregate from part 4.17.
- Fees received by trustees in respect of services rendered to related parties to the scheme will also pull

through as an aggregate from part 4.17.
- Principal Officer remuneration and considerations will be pulled through from part 4.16.1.26.1 and

part 4.16.1.26.2.
- Any other members of “executive” management’s remuneration should be disclosed separately from

the board of trustees and Principal Officers’ remuneration.
- Gross contributions received (disclosed in aggregate)
- Gross claims paid (disclose in aggregate)
- Ex-gratia payments (disclose in aggregate)
- Any other transaction entered into between the scheme and one of the parties mentioned above

(disclose per individual)
- Any transactions between the scheme and another entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or

significantly influenced by one of the parties mentioned above (disclose per individual)
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- Outstanding balances on savings accounts (disclosed in aggregate)
- Outstanding contributions payable to scheme (disclosed in aggregate)
- Outstanding claims due by the scheme (disclosed in aggregate)
- Outstanding balances with regards to any other transaction (disclose per individual)

Employer groups
(The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an
entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the reporting entity.)
- Grant received from employer
- Administration refund from employer
- Rent paid to the employer
- Administration fees paid if the employer group handles the administration function
- Site office costs
- Any other transactions
- Outstanding balances due by the scheme in respect of the above transactions
- Outstanding balances due to the scheme in respect of the above transactions

Administrators
(A management entity that provides key management personnel services to a scheme may be deemed a
related party in respect of those key management personnel services.)
- Administration fees paid
- Administration fees recovered
- Site office costs
- Rent received (where administrator rents building from scheme)
- Rent paid (where scheme rents building from administrator)
- Any other transactions
- Outstanding balances due by the scheme in respect of the above transactions
- Outstanding balances due to the scheme in respect of the above transactions

Accredited managed care organisations
(A management entity that provides key management personnel services to a scheme may be deemed a
related party in respect of those key management personnel services.)
- Accredited managed healthcare fee (the total amount per party must be provided as the details would

have been provided in 4.12).
- Outstanding balances due by the scheme in respect of the above transactions
- Outstanding balances due to the scheme in respect of the above transactions

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, and Associates
These entities’ names will pull through from question 7 in part 1.4:
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Additional entries for each related party can be created by clicking on the “Copy” button.

- Any transactions
- Outstanding balances due by the scheme
- Outstanding balances due to the scheme

Details need to be provided where transactions did not occur on an arms-length basis.
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The following are examples of how part 4.26 have to be completed:

Name Nature of Related
party relationship

Nature of
transactions/

balances at year-end

Was the
transaction/

balances at year-
end at arm’s-length

Amount

Y/N R

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4.26.1 Transactions for the year (statement of
comprehensive income)

4.26.1.1 Contributions Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Trustee contributions Yes 139,915

4.26.1.2 Contributions Principal Officer Key management
personnel

Principal Officer
contributions

Yes 13,275

4.26.1.3 Claims paid Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Trustee claims paid Yes 38,219

4.26.1.4 Claims paid Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Trustee claims paid
MSA

Yes 38,492

4.26.1.5 Claims paid Principal Officer Key management
personnel

Principal Officer claims
paid

Yes 102

4.26.1.6 Claims paid Principal Officer Key management
personnel

Principal Officer claims
paid MSA

Yes 3,656

4.26.1.7 A Smit Medical practice Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Healthcare provider
fees paid

Yes 333,833
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Name Nature of Related
party relationship

Nature of
transactions/

balances at year-end

Was the
transaction/

balances at year-
end at arm’s-length

Amount

Y/N R

4.26.1.8 AB Administrators (Pty) Ltd Administrator Key management
personnel

Administration fees Yes 2,500,000

4.26.1.9 AB Administrators (Pty) Ltd Administrator Key management
personnel

Interest received on
monthly balances

Yes 491,652

4.26.1.10 AB Administrators (Pty) Ltd Administrator Key management
personnel

Interest paid on monthly
balances

Yes 48,679

4.26.1.11 AB Administrators (Pty) Ltd Managed care
organisation

Key management
personnel

Managed care fees Yes 419,503,072

4.26.1.12 Employer Group ABC Employer group Sponsoring employer Grant received Yes 5,000,000

4.26.2 Trustee remuneration & considerations Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Trustee remuneration Yes 617,529

4.26.3 Trustees: Fees received in respect of
services rendered to related parties

Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Services rendered to
related parties

Yes 203,152

4.26.4 Principal Officer remuneration &
considerations

Principal Officer Key management
personnel

Principal Officer
remuneration

Yes 1,944,808

4.26.5.1 AB Ltd Subsidiary Subsidiary Rental No 20,000
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Name Nature of Related
party relationship

Nature of
transactions/

balances at year-end

Was the
transaction/

balances at year-
end at arm’s-length

Amount

Y/N R

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4.26.6 Balances at year end (statement of
financial position)

4.26.6.1 AB Ltd Subsidiary Subsidiary Rental owed No 40,000

4.26.6.2 Contributions debtor Principal Officer Key management
personnel

Principal Officer
contribution debtor

Yes 1,093

4.26.6.3 Savings plan liability Principal Officer Key management
personnel

Savings plan liability Yes 1,683

4.26.6.4 Contributions debtor Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Trustee contributions
debtors

Yes 5,397

4.26.6.5 Savings plan liability Board of Trustees Key management
personnel

Savings plan liability Yes 9,556

4.26.6.6 AB Administrators (Pty) Ltd Administrator Key management
personnel

Administration fees
payable

Yes 188,529,398



Help File: 2017 Annual Statutory Return

Page 93 of 142

PART 5 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Most of the statement of financial position balances for the current year pulls automatically through from the
individual parts, completed in part 4 and part 7 of the return; except for other non-current assets,
inventories, other current assets, minority interest (where a scheme completes consolidated financial
statements) and other current liabilities.

Details of other non-current and current assets should be provided in the description line provided for in
part 5.1.1.3 and 5.1.2.5 respectively; all the scheme’s non-current and current assets should not be
aggregated and disclosed as a single line in part 5.1.1.3 and 5.1.2.5. The same applies to the other current
liabilities in part 5.2.3.4.

The majority of the scheme’s previous year’s figures are automatically pulled through from the previous
year’s return. The scheme has the option to unlock these amounts and edit them in instances where
changes occurred. When changes are made to these figures, the scheme would be required to provide
more information on the reasons for these adjustments. The following lines pull through from opening
balances in parts 4 and 7:
· Property, plant and equipment;
· Accumulated funds;
· Revaluation reserve – investments;
· Revaluation reserve – property, plant and equipment;
· Reserves set aside for specific purposes;
· Other reserves;
· Savings plan liability; and
· Outstanding claims provision.
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The personal medical savings account  liability is a current liability, due to the fact that if the members of the
scheme leave tomorrow, their credit savings account balances must be transferred or paid out immediately
in terms of Regulation 10 of the Act.

Details of other current liabilities should be provided in the description line provided for in part 5.2.3.4; all the
scheme’s current liabilities should not be aggregated and disclosed as a single line in part 5.2.3.4.

The total assets in part 5.1.3 must agree with the total funds and liabilities in part 5.2.4 (both current and
prior year columns).

PART 6 STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Part 6.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income

The current year income statement pulls through from the consolidated amounts as captured in part 4.23 of
the return.

The other comprehensive income should agree with the net movements in the different reserve accounts
(excluding movements due to amalgamations), for both the current and previous financial year.
The reclassification adjustment as per line 6.1.25 relates to gain/ loss on sale of available-for sale
investments which is taken to the income statements within "Investment income". This figure is the negative
of the pulled through value from line 4.20.3 Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale
investments.
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The prior year figures are automatically pulled through from the previous year’s annual statutory return,
except for line 6.1.4.2 which pulls through from line 4.13.4’s previous year consolidated total column, and
line 6.1.8 which pulls through from line 4.16.1.39’s previous year fund total column. The user has the option
to unlock these amounts for editing when prior year adjustments/restatements occurred. When changes are
made to these figures, the scheme would be required to provide more information on the reasons for these
adjustments.

The detailed entries in lines 6.1.11 (Net impairment losses: Other), 6.1.16 (Other income) and 6.1.18 (Other
expenses) automatically pull through from both the previous year’s return and part 4.23. It is therefore
recommended that the user makes use of similar descriptions than that used in the previous year’s return
when completing part 4.23, to ensure that the current and previous year information is matched.

The description of the previous year’s detailed entries in lines 6.1.11, 6.1.16 and 6.1.18 can be amended by
making use of the “Unlock previous year amounts” button. This would need to be done before completing
part 4.23 in order to ensure a correct matching of current and previous year information.

Details (per nature of transaction) of the following income (and expense) should be provided:
· Other comprehensive income (6.1.27)

Where the scheme receives a grant from a sponsor, an employer, third party fund administrator, etc.,
whether to comply with Regulation 29 of the Regulations to the Act, namely, minimum accumulated funds to
be maintained by the scheme, or for any other reason, the grant is shown separately under “Other income”
in part 6.16.  Such grants do therefore not form part of the scheme’s net healthcare result.
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Part 6.2.1 Monthly Statement of Net Healthcare Result: Current Year

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

The total amount for the year to date income statement should at all times agree on a line for line basis with
the amounts as per part 6.1.

The year to date administration fees and indirect fees paid to the administrator  plus the year to date co-
administration fees paid should agree with the amount captured in line 4.16.2.10 (current year column); and
the year to date co-administration fees paid should agree with line 4.16.1.11 (fund column).
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Part 6.2.2 Monthly Statement of Net Healthcare Result: Previous Year

The previous year’s amounts are automatically pulled through from the previous year’s return. The scheme
can then make adjustments to these figures if needs be.

The total amount for the year to date income statement should at all times agree on a line for line basis with
the amounts as per part 6.1 (previous year column).

The year to date administration fees and indirect fees paid to the administrator  plus the year to date co-
administration fees paid should agree with the amount captured in line 4.16.2.10 (previous year column);
and the year to date co-administration fees paid should agree with line 4.16.1.11 (previous year fund
column).
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Part 6.3 Results of Efficiency Discount options

Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:
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The names of the various benefit options with Efficiency Discount Options are pulled through from part 1.2:

Columns are generated for each individual Efficiency Discount Option per benefit option.

The results per benefit option pulls through from the per benefit option amounts as captured in part 4.23 of
the return; the membership data pulls through from parts 2.1 and 2.3. The scheme would then need to
manually capture each individual Efficiency Discount’s results.

The non-Efficiency Discount option results are calculated as the total benefit option results less the various
Efficiency Discount Sub-Option results; except for the average age and pensioner ratios which would need
to be captured manually.

There are validation rules ensuring the completion of this part.
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PART 7 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES

Part 7.1 Accumulated Funds

The opening balance as previously reported at the beginning of the previous year (7.1.1.1), pulls
automatically through from the previous year’s annual return (7.1.1).  Therefore, the scheme should restate
the prior year’s figures (where applicable) on the return by making use of line 7.1.1.2. Lines 7.1.3 and 7.1.4
also pull through automatically from the previous year’s return, and can be adjusted by making use of the
“Unlock previous year amounts” button.

The closing balance of the previous year (7.1.5) pulls automatically through to the opening balance of the
current year (as previously reported - 7.1.1.1). The current year’s figure will therefore automatically
incorporate any restatements of prior year balances.

The net surplus/ (deficit) after consolidation for the year in part 7.1.2 pulls through from part 6.1.22, for both
the current and previous financial year.

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any amounts included in part 7.1.4.  The scheme should
only complete this part if the return does not cater specifically for that kind of transaction elsewhere in
part 7.1.
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The following reason box should be completed (if the specifications are met):

Specification Reason box wording
Previous year figures were
restated/reclassified in line
7.1.1.2 (both current year
and previous year columns),
as well as in the previous
year column lines 7.1.3 –
7.1.4

Please provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements/reclassifications.

Part 7.2 Revaluation Reserve (Financial Instruments)

The opening balance as previously reported at the beginning of the previous year (7.2.1.1), automatically
pulls through from the previous year’s annual return (7.2.1).  Therefore, the scheme should restate the prior
year’s figures (where applicable) on the return by making use of line 7.2.1.2. Lines 7.2.4 and 7.2.5 also pull
through automatically from the previous year’s return, and can be adjusted by making use of the “Unlock
previous year amounts” button.

The closing balance of the previous year (7.2.6) pulls automatically through to the opening balance of the
current year (as previously reported – 7.2.1.1). Hence, the current year’s figure will automatically incorporate
any restatements of prior year’s balances.
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The unrealised gains/losses on revaluation of investments (7.2.2) automatically pull through from 6.1.24, for
both the current and previous financial year.

The realised (gains)/losses on derecognition of investments (7.2.3) automatically pulls through from 6.1.25,
for both the current and previous financial year.

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any amounts included in part 7.2.5.2.  The scheme should
only complete this part if the return does not cater specifically for that kind of transaction elsewhere in
part 7.2.

The following reason box should be completed (if the specifications are met):

Specification Reason box wording
Previous year figures were
restated/reclassified in line
7.2.1.2 (both current year
and previous year columns),
as well as in the previous
year column lines 7.2.4 –
7.2.5.

Please provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements/reclassifications.

Part 7.3 Revaluation Reserve (Property, Plant and Equipment)
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The opening balance as previously reported at the beginning of the previous year (7.3.1.1), automatically
pulls through from the previous year’s annual return (7.3.1).  Therefore, the scheme should restate the prior
year’s figures (where applicable) on the return.  The scheme should please use 7.3.1.2 for any
restatements.  Lines 7.3.3 and 7.3.4 also pull through automatically from the previous year’s return, and can
be adjusted by making use of the “Unlock previous year amounts” button.

The closing balance of the previous year (7.3.5) pulls automatically through to the opening balance of the
current year (as previously reported – 7.3.1.1). Hence, the current year’s figure will automatically incorporate
any restatements of prior year’s balances.

The unrealised gains/losses on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (7.3.2) automatically pulls
through from 6.1.26, for both the current and previous financial year.

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any amounts included in part 7.3.4.2. The scheme should
only complete this part if the return does not cater specifically for that kind of transaction elsewhere in
part 7.3.

The following reason box should be completed (if the specifications are met):

Specification Reason box wording
Previous year figures were
restated/reclassified in line
7.3.1.2 (both current year
and previous year columns),
as well as in the previous
year column lines 7.3.3 –
7.3.4.

Please provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements/reclassifications.
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Part 7.4 Reserves Set Aside for Specific Purposes

The scheme should complete this part per individual reserve set aside for specific purposes.  The following
screen will appear, to enable the scheme to capture the individual reserves:

After capturing all the reserves set aside for specific purposes the user should press the ‘done’ button.  The
reserves captured will then automatically pull through to part 7.4.
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The consolidated balance at the beginning of the previous year (7.4.1.1) automatically pulls through from
the scheme’s previous’ annual return (7.4.1). Therefore, the scheme should restate the prior year’s figures
(where applicable) on the current year’s return by making use of line 7.4.1.2.   Lines 7.4.2.1 and 7.4.2 also
pull through automatically from the previous year’s return, and can be adjusted by making use of the
“Unlock previous year amounts” button.

The data should be captured per individual reserve, as the consolidated column sums the total of all the
individual reserves.

The closing balance of the previous year (7.4.3) automatically pulls through to the opening balance of the
current year (as previously reported – 7.4.1.1). Hence, the current year’s figure will automatically incorporate
any restatements of prior year’s balances.

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any amounts included in part 7.4.2.2.  The scheme should
also only complete this part, if the return does not cater specifically for that kind of transaction elsewhere in
part 7.4.
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It should be noted that reserves set aside for specific purposes are excluded from the scheme’s solvency
ratio in terms of Regulation 29:

The following reason box should be completed (if the specifications are met):

Specification Reason box wording
Previous year figures were
restated/reclassified in line
7.4.1.2 (both current year
and previous year
consolidated columns), as
well as in the previous year
column lines 7.4.2.1 and
7.4.2.2.

Please provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements/reclassifications.
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Part 7.5 Other Reserves

The scheme should complete this part per individual other reserve.  The following screen will appear, to
enable the scheme to capture the individual reserves:

After capturing all the other reserves, the user should press the ‘done’ button. The reserves captured will
then automatically pull through to part 7.5.
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The consolidated balance at the beginning of the previous year (7.5.1.1) automatically pulls through from
the scheme’s previous’ annual return (7.5.1). Therefore, the scheme should restate the prior year’s figures
(where applicable) on the current year’s return by making use of line 7.5.1.2.   Lines 7.5.2.1 and 7.5.2.2 also
pull through automatically from the previous year’s return, and can be adjusted by making use of the
“Unlock previous year amounts” button..

The data should be captured per individual reserve, as the consolidated column sums the total of all the
individual reserves.

The closing balance of the previous year (7.5.3) pulls automatically through to the opening balance of the
current year (as previously reported – 7.5.1.1). Hence, the current year’s figure will automatically incorporate
any restatements of prior year’s balances.

The scheme should provide the exact nature of any amounts included in part 7.5.2.2.  The scheme should
also only complete this part, if the return does not cater specifically for that kind of transaction elsewhere in
part 7.5.

It should be noted that other reserves are included in the scheme’s solvency ratio in terms of Regulation 29.
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The following reason box should be completed (if the specifications are met):

Specification Reason box wording
Previous year figures were
restated/reclassified in line
7.5.1.2 (both current year
and previous year
consolidated columns), as
well as in the previous year
column lines 7.5.2.1 and
7.5.2.2.

Please provide the reasons for any prior year
restatements/reclassifications.

PART 8 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

All investment income received should for return purposes be accounted for under part 8.2 "Cash flows from
investing activities" in the relevant lines:

The Council requires schemes to use the direct method in disclosing its cash flows for the period for return
purposes.
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Where a line starts with the word ‘Less’, the scheme should place a minus in front of the figure:

The prior year figures are automatically pulled through from the previous year’s annual statutory return. The
user has the option to unlock these amounts for editing when prior year adjustments/restatements occurred.
When changes are made to these figures, or an amount captured in line 8.5.2 (both current year and
previous year columns), the scheme would be required to provide more information on the reasons for these
adjustments.

Cash receipts from members and providers – other (line 8.1.1.2) will include co-payments from members as
well as recoveries from third parties.
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Details (per nature of transaction) of the following income and expenses should be provided in the different
parts:
· Other cash flows from operating activities (8.1.5)
· Other cash flows from investing activities (8.2.10)
· Other cash flows from financing activities (8.3.2)
· Other net increases in cash and cash equivalents (8.6)

The cash and cash equivalents at the end of the current year in part 8.9 (scheme and PMSA), should agree
with the total cash and cash equivalents per statement of financial position in part 4.4.7 plus the Personal
medical savings account trust investment in part 5.1.2.5 (current year column) less any bank overdrafts in
part 4.8.5. The cash and cash equivalents at the end of the previous year in part 8.9 (scheme and PMSA),
should either agree with or be less than the sum of parts 5.1.2.4 and 5.1.25 (previous year columns)

The cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the previous year (8.5.1) pull automatically through from
the scheme’s previous year’s annual return (8.5). The closing balance at the end of the previous year (8.9)
pulls then automatically through to opening cash and cash equivalent for the current year in part 8.5.1.
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PART 9 BREAKDOWN OF INVESTMENTS

Part 9(a) Assets Held in the Republic

Should the scheme categorise any investments in Part 9 different from the categorisation as per the above
guidelines, supporting documentation attesting to the new classification must be submitted.
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In terms of the 6 June 2017 Constitutional Court judgement, the scheme is the right holder of the personal
medical savings accounts, and these monies form part of the scheme assets. These monies are therefore
included in part 9(a) as Annexure B restrictions apply.
Should the Scheme Rules state that savings monies belong to members, the Financial Institutions
(Protection of Funds) Act, 28 of 2001 (FIA) applies which means that these funds are trust money which
must be kept separately. These trust investments should therefore not be included in part 9(a).

Where a description field starts with a "Less: ...", a minus should be placed in front of the figure:

Please note that the definitions of the fair values of assets as set out in Regulation 30(4) may in some
instances not be in line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). However, in terms of
Regulation 30(7) the Registrar directs medical schemes to calculate the fair value of assets as prescribed by
the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The bank institutions for all cash investments (including all current bank accounts), should be provided in
category 9.1 of part 9(a) the return. These balances should take the effect of outstanding cheques into
account as per part 4.4.9. Please note that should the investment portfolios have a ‘trading account’, the
scheme should indicate at which bank institution these accounts are held.
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The names of all the registered banks will appear in a drop down list and the scheme should simply choose
the institution required. Please note that multiple institutions can be selected at a time. The amount invested
in any one institution should be in aggregate.

Please refer to the published guideline on our website that provides a listing of all registered banks; mutual
banks; local branches of foreign banks; and foreign banks with approved local representative offices as per
the South African Reserve Banks’ Banks Supervision Unit. The guideline further sub-categorises these
banks in terms of Category 1 of Annexure B to the Regulations.

It should be noted that the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) DI900 returns have subsequently changed
to BA900 returns. The total equity line (total of lines 97 and 101) per these returns is used in the
classification of banks between categories 1(a)(i) and 1(a)(ii). The CMS uses the latest available returns as
published on the SARB’s website; which might not coincide with the period under review.

For prudency purposes, and taking into account that only the October returns are available at the time of
classification, a registered bank is only categorised as a category 1(a)(i) bank (with net qualifying capital and
reserve funds per Reserve Bank DI900 return greater than R5 billion) in the second year that it has reached
this level of reserves. Due to the well-publicised problems experienced by African Bank, and the fact that
only the October returns were available to aid in the classification of banks,  African Bank was categorised
as a category 1(a)(ii) bank (with net qualifying capital and reserve funds per Reserve Bank DI900 return
greater than R100 million).

All branches of foreign banks (i.e. foreign bank representatives) per the South African Reserve Bank are
included in the Territories outside the Republic (i.e. category 1(b)) classification.

A treasury bill represents a charge on the revenues and assets of the Republic of South Africa; it is a
security of great simplicity resembling a bank note. The main difference is that it is a note payable not at
sight, but on a certain date in the future. Treasury bills are issued by the South African Reserve Bank on
behalf of the National Treasury, and should be included in category 1(a)(i).

Category 1 includes margin deposits held with the South African Futures Exchange (SAFEX). As
was clarified in Circular 3 of 2011, the underlying bank exposure in respect of margin deposits held
with SAFEX should be determined; the amount should be split accordingly and included in the
exposure to each individual bank.

Please refer to the published guidelines on our website that provides information on the categorisation of all
listed instruments on both the Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE) and the JSE’s debt market in
accordance to the requirements of Annexure B to the Regulations in the different sub-categories of
categories 2 (bonds), 3 (property), 4 (shares), 5 (debentures) and 7 (other assets). All these guidelines have
been incorporated in the drop down lists in the relevant categories.

The JSE publishes on a regular basis lists of all active inward listed securities, there being separate lists for
bonds and equities. These securities are considered to be foreign for exchange control purposes by the
South African Reserve Bank, and are therefore classified as Territories outside the Republic for Annexure B
purposes. These instruments are therefore included in categories 2(b), 3(b), 4(b) and 7(b).

The names of the institutions which issued all bills, bonds, securities or any other money market
investments should be selected / captured in 9.2 of part 9(a) of the return.  This category makes provision
for debt instruments which reference to fixed or floating rates, with no embedded derivatives.
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The names of all the listed entities which are classified in categories 2(a)(i) – 2(a)(xiv) and 2(b) will appear in
a drop down list and the scheme should simply choose the institution required. Please note that multiple
institutions and instrument codes can be selected at a time. The amount invested in any one institution
would then need to be broken down into the individual instrument codes. Where the scheme has
investments in other entities than those listed, or investments in institutions listed but in different instruments
than those provided in the drop-down menu, the “other” button provided in the drop down list should be
used, clearly indicating the nature of these investments.

Category 2(a)(i): The Government guarantees and fully backs certain bonds. Where a specific category (i.e.
categories 2(a)(ii) – (x)) makes provision for an entity which had issued Government guaranteed and
backed bonds, the bonds are firstly classified in this separate category.
Bonds issued by the Transkei Administration Board have been incorporated in the National Debt Register of
the RSA government with effect from 1 July 1998, and is therefore included in category 2(a)(i).

Category 2(a)(viii): The SA Roads Board is now known as the South African National Roads Agency Limited
(SANRAL).

Categories 2(a)(xi) and 2(a)(xii): Money market instruments issued by banks must be included in category 1.
Any other money market instruments (i.e. issued by entities other than banks), must be included in
category 2 (or category 3 where applicable).

It should however be noted that where the classification of a bond issued by a bank changed from
category 2(a)(xi) (or category 2(a)(xii)) to category 1(a)(i) (or category 1(a)(ii)) due to its maturity date being
less than 90 days, the instrument will for return purposes still be included in category 2(a). This is due to the
fact that the reclassification would not affect compliance to the requirements of Explanatory Notes /
Conditions 5 and 6 to Annexure B.  Should compliance to Explanatory Note 2 become a consideration, the
scheme can include the relevant bond (i.e. money market instrument) in category 1(a) under the relevant
bank’s name.

At the end of 2017, only 24 bonds listed on the JSE’s debt market qualified for a reclassification:

Issuer Instrument Code Pricing Class
Code

Maturity Date

ABSA Bank Limited ABFN07 Floating Rate Note 2018/03/17

ABN33 Customised
Instruments

2018/01/29

ABN34 Customised
Instruments

2018/01/29

ABN72 Floating Rate Note 2018/03/17

ABS10 Vanilla 2018/03/17

ASN051 Customised
Instruments

2018/03/19

ASN119 Floating Rate Note 2018/01/27

ASN211 Commercial Paper 2018/03/05

Firstrand Bank Limited FRJ18 Floating Rate Note 2018/02/21

FRS130 Commercial Paper 2018/02/11
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Issuer Instrument Code Pricing Class
Code

Maturity Date

Investec Bank Limited IBL22 Vanilla 2018/03/15

IBL66 Floating Rate Note 2018/03/12

Nedbank Limited NBK22B Floating Rate Note 2018/02/12

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited SBS35 Floating Rate Note 2018/01/29

SSN045 Floating Rate Note 2018/02/14

Bank of China Limited BCJ12 Vanilla 2018/03/23

Category 2(a)(xiii): This category makes provision for listed securities that is included in either the
OTHI or ALBI, but which is not already included in categories 2(a)(i) – 2(a)xii). At the end of the
year, all qualifying bonds were already included in the other categories.

Category 3 makes provision for immovable property and claims secured by mortgage bonds thereon, units
in unit trust schemes in property shares and shares in, loans to and debentures, both convertible and non-
convertible, of property companies.
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This category is inclusive of property bonds as per the descriptor. The issuer class / sector is considered in
the classification of instruments listed on the JSE’s debt market:
· H30 - Real Estate Operators and Developers
· K11 - Residential Property Backed Securities
· K14 - Commercial Property Backed Securities
Known property collateral debt obligations are also included in this category.

The sector and sub-sectors are considered in the classification of securities listed on the JSE:
· Real Estate
· Real Estate Investment & Services
· Real Estate Investment Trusts

The ASISA sector classification is considered in the allocation of collective investment schemes (CIS) to
category 3(a):
· South African – Real Estate – General

All avenues of gaining exposure to property (i.e. equity, bonds, money market instruments, real estate CIS
and debentures) are therefore grouped together in category 3.

A detailed list of every single property investment should be captured in category 9.3 of part 9(a) of the
return, including the names of all property companies (again listed in a drop down list) in which the scheme
invests. The amounts can be aggregated per company or per property. These also include owner occupied
properties. The said drop down list only indicate listed property companies and real estate CIS, any other
investments (i.e. owner occupied buildings, etc.) should be entered by making use of the “other” button
within the drop down list.

Part 9(a) subtotal: Category 3(a) must be equal or greater than the total investment property (part 4.2.1)
plus the net carrying amount of the land and buildings at end of year (part 4.1.3).

Category 4: The description of the category includes convertible debentures, whether voluntary or
compulsory convertible. At the end of the year, all the debentures listed on the JSE were convertible, and
were therefore included in category 4.

Category 4(a)(ii): The total market capitalisation per company is calculated for purposes of this
classification. This would include inter alia ordinary shares, A ordinary shares, B ordinary shares, N ordinary
shares, preference shares, depository receipts, nil paid letters and convertible debentures.

Category 4(a)(iii): This category makes provision for exchange traded funds. The sub-sector is taken into
account in the classification of instruments listed on the JSE. Due to the merger of the JSE and BESA on
22 June 2009, all listed bonds with the relevant instrument type are also included in this category.
A detailed list of all the companies in which any equity investments are held should be captured in
category 9.4 of part 9(a) of the return. The scheme should simply choose the institution and the relevant
instrument required from the applicable drop down lists. The amount invested in any one institution would
then need to be broken down into the individual instrument codes.
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The underlying assets of all equity unit trusts, pooled equity managed funds and policies of insurance
captured in categories 4(a)(iv), 4(a)(v), 6(a)(ii) and 6(b) in the “Investments” column should also be captured
in the separate columns making provision for such underlying assets. These underlying assets should be
disclosed to the same extent as the other individual investments described above, in categories 1 - 7 of part
9(a) of the return.

The total of the amounts captured in the relevant columns for the underlying assets of the equity unit trusts
or pooled equity managed funds and policies of insurances should agree with the totals captured in the
investment column’s categories 4(a)(iv), 4(a)(v), 6(a)(ii) and 6(b) respectively. In order to prevent double
counting, any amounts captured in these columns will not be included in the total investable assets in
category 9.9 of part 9(a) of the return.

Any other unit trust and managed funds/portfolios should be broken down into its underlying assets in the
“Investments” column itself. The reason for the separate columns for the underlying assets of
category 4(a)(iv), 4(a)(v), 6(a)(ii) and 6(b) assets is that compliance is tested on a two tier basis: on the
investment itself (i.e. category 4(a)(iv)(i) assets are limited to 40%), and then based on the underlying
assets of the investment.

This will give effect to the requirements of explanatory note 8 to Annexure B: “Unit trusts and policies of
insurance may not be utilised to circumvent the limitations of these regulations. Medical schemes are
required to demonstrate on a “look-through” basis that such avenues have not been utilised to bypass the
limitations imposed by Annexure B”.

The following decision trees will aid in the classification of unit trusts and policies of insurance:
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In respect of category 6 assets, please refer to the list of insurers registered in the Republic that is published
on our website.

Some investment portfolios refer to percentage holdings in ‘other assets’ or ‘international assets’, please
note that the full details of these investments should be provided per asset class in the return.

As was clarified in Circular 3 of 2011, all derivative instruments (regardless of its reference asset) are
included in category 7.  Commodities are also included in this category.

In the event that credit linked notes contain no embedded derivatives and the scheme wish to reclassify it to
category 2, the scheme must submit supporting documentation attesting to the new classification.

Part 9(a) subtotal: Category 7(a) (i) must agree with the current year’s inventories (part 5.1.2.1).

The following assets in category 7(a) (iii) pulls through automatically:

Asset Pull through from
Property, plant and equipment: computer
equipment and software  (direct
investment)

4.1.3 - Net Carrying amount at end of year  (Computer
Equipment and Software)

Property, plant and equipment: furniture
and fittings  (direct investment)

4.1.3 - Net Carrying amount at end of year  (Furniture and
Fittings)

Property, plant and equipment: motor
vehicles (direct investment)

4.1.3 - Net Carrying amount at end of year  (Motor Vehicles)

Property, plant and equipment: other
(direct investment)

4.1.3 - Net Carrying amount at end of year  (Other)

Part 9(a) subtotal:  category 7(a)(iii) must be equal to or greater than the net carrying amount the computer
equipment, Furniture & fittings, Motor vehicles column and Other assets at end of year (part 4.1.3).

The total investable assets in line 9.9 of part 9(a) of the return is the sum of all the amounts captured under
categories 9.1 – 9.7 (all the grey headings), less assets encumbered which pulls through from part 4.25.2
(Total encumbered assets and Total suretyships columns) of the return.

Trade and other receivables in category 9.12 of part 9(a) (direct investment) of the return automatically pulls
through from part 5.1.2.2 of the statement of financial position.

In the event that the scheme amalgamated during the year, it will still need to complete part 9(a) in detail as
at the date of the amalgamation. The total assets transferred to another scheme will then be deducted in
line 9.13.

The total assets in category 9.14 of part 9(a) of the return is the sum of the total investable assets in line 9.9,
plus the aforementioned encumbered assets, intangible assets, and trade and other receivables less the
total assets transferred to another scheme upon amalgamation (during the year). This total should agree
with the sum of the total assets in part 5.1.3 of the statement of financial position and outstanding cheques
per part 4.4.8 less the balance of the personal medical savings account trust investment as captured in part
4.5.2.6.



Help File: 2017 Annual Statutory Return

Page 122 of 142

Example:

The following is an example of how part 9A has to be completed:

Scheme A has invested in the following products:

· Policy of insurance A (the policy proceeds are directly linked to the market value of the underlying
assets)

· Investment portfolio with asset manager ABC

· Current account at FirstRand Bank Limited (to the value of R60 000)

Policy of insurance A consists out of the following assets:
Money market instruments issued by ABSA Bank Limited  R100 000
Cash held in a fixed deposit at Nedbank Limited R100 000
The following equity:
African Bank preference shares (ABLP) R100 000
African Oxygen Ltd shares (AFX) R100 000

The total market value of Policy of insurance A is R400 000.

The assets in the Investment portfolio with asset manager ABC are held in the scheme’s name; the portfolio
consists out of the following assets:
Call account held at ABSA Bank Limited R30 000
Money market instruments issued by Nedbank Limited R30 000
The following equity:
African Bank ordinary shares (ABL) R30 000
African Oxygen Ltd shares (AFX) R30 000

The total market value of the investments is R120 000.

The total investable assets is R580 000 (R400 000 + R120 000 + R60 000).
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Part 9A should be completed as follows:

1. Policy of insurance A is captured in category 6(a)(ii) in the column “Investments”.
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2. The underlying assets of the policy of insurance are captured in the column “Underlying assets of
Policies of Insurance captured in Categories 4(a)(v), 6(a)(ii) and 6(b)”.
The investments in the Investment Portfolio with asset manager ABC is captured in the column
“Investments”.
The current account held at FirstRand Bank Limited is captured in the column “Investments”.
The following screenshot is an example of the category 1 assets:
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The following screenshot is an example of the category 4(a)(ii)(ii) assets:
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3. The total investable asset value is R580 000.
In order to prevent double counting, any amounts captured in the “Underlying assets of Policies of
Insurance captured in Categories 4(a)(v), 6(a)(ii) and 6(b)” column is not included in the total investable
assets in category 9.9 of part 9(a) of the return (i.e. in the “Total Annexure B Fair Value column”).
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Part 9(b) Assets Held in the Republic in Terms of Regulation 30 in Conjunction with
Annexure B to the Regulations

This part should be completed per person/company/institution managing the investments of the scheme,
whether it is managed on behalf of the scheme or by the scheme itself. The names of the investment
managers pull through automatically from part 1.4 question 6(g):

It is important to note that only FAIS registered entities are allowed to manage investments on behalf of a
medical scheme.

Please refer to the Financial Services Board’s website (www.fsb.co.za) for more details on registered
Financial Service Providers. A list of these providers as at 31 December is also published on our website.
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The total investable assets in Part 9(b) must agree with the total investable assets in Part 9(a).9.

PART 10 MINIMUM ACCUMULATED FUNDS TO BE MAINTAINED

Part 10.1 Cumulative Net Gain on Re-measurement of Properties and Investments

Part 10.1 is only applicable to those kind of investments, where it is/was the scheme’s accounting policy to
take any unrealised gains/(losses) on the re-measurement of investments to the statement of income
(accumulated funds); as all other unrealised gains will be accommodated in the revaluation reserves in part
7.2 and part 7.3 (and as part of the statement of other comprehensive income). Any consolidated results are
also included in this part, in order to ensure that the solvency calculation is based on scheme-only results.

Part 10.1 starts with the net gains/ (losses) on the re-measurement of properties and investments to fair
value, which were previously included in accumulated funds.  This balance at the beginning of the year
(10.1.1) automatically pulls through from the scheme’s previous year’s annual return.

In the event that there is an adjustment to the opening balance (line 10.1.2), the scheme would be required
to provide details in respect of this adjustment in the reason box.

Part 10.1 continues to extract all the net unrealised gains/ (losses) included in the current year’s income
statement.

The net gains/ (losses) on revaluation of investments and property, plant and equipment included in the
statement of income in part 10.1.3 automatically pulls through from part 4.20.4 (unrealised gains/ (losses)
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on revaluation of investment property), and part 4.20.5 (net gains/ (losses) on revaluation of investments
carried at fair value through the income statement) as well as part 7.1.3.2 (due to re-measurement of
investments and property, plant and equipment).

To ensure that only the net unrealised gains/ (losses) are deducted from the solvency ratio, the scheme
should capture any permanent impairment losses and reversal of impairment losses on revaluation of
investments and property, plant and equipment included in the statement of income in part 10.1.4.  This
amount should be captured as a negative amount, to ensure that it is deducted from the unrealised gains.

Furthermore, the scheme should deduct all realised portions of any previously recognised unrealised
gains/(losses), which are included in the accumulated funds (income statement), in part 10.1.5; this will
ensure that only the remaining net unrealised gain/(loss) is deducted from the solvency calculation.

The scheme’s consolidated results are excluded in line 10.1.6 (automatic pull through from line 6.21).

In the event that a scheme amalgamated during the year, the scheme should ensure the accurate
completion of this part up to the date of amalgamation. As the return is prepared as at 31 December, the
realised amount upon amalgamation should be excluded (i.e. deducted) in line 10.1.7.

A detailed description of any transaction included in part 10.1.8 should be provided; as this will have a direct
impact on the solvency calculation of the scheme at year-end.

The closing balance in line 10.1.9 should represent the unrealised gains in investments still held by the
scheme (i.e. not disposed of) at the year-end; it should therefore correspond to the fair value of investments
held at year-end less the initial purchase value of those investments.
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Part 10.2 Solvency Ratio

Where a description field starts with a "Less: ...", a minus should be placed in front of the figure:

Accumulated funds in terms of Regulation 29
Accumulated funds represent the net asset value of the scheme excluding funds set-aside for specific
purposes, unrealised non-distributable reserves and encumbered assets. Therefore, the total members’
funds in 10.2.1 automatically pulls through from part 5.2.1 of the return.

Unrealised non-distributable reserves
Both the revaluation reserve for investments (part 7.2) as well as the revaluation reserve for property, plant
and equipment (part 7.3) should be deducted from the total members’ funds for solvency purposes; to
ensure that unrealised non-distributable reserves are excluded.
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Therefore, part 10.2.2 automatically pulls through from (part 5.2.1.2 (revaluation reserve for investments)
plus part 5.2.1.3 (revaluation reserve for property, plant and equipment)).

Funds set aside for specific purposes
All funds set aside for future claims, whatever they are called, should be included in accumulated funds.
This has the effect of looking at the nature of the fund, rather than the name.

However, funds “set aside for specific non-claims purposes” should be excluded from accumulated funds.

It is therefore recommended that schemes classify their reserves properly keeping in mind the
Regulation 29 prescriptions.

Part 10.2.3 pulls automatically through from part 5.2.1.4 (reserves set aside for specific purposes).

Cumulative net gains on revaluation of investments and property, plant and equipment included in the
statement of income
Part 10.2.4 automatically pulls through from part 10.1.9; should part 10.1.9 be an unrealised gain.  Where
part 10.1 resulted in a net cumulative unrealised loss, it is ignored and not pulled through to part 10.2; as net
unrealised losses are not added to accumulated funds to calculate solvency.

However, in some instances it was noted that a scheme’s accounting policy states that for some
investments the unrealised gains/ (losses) on the re-measurement of that investment are taken to the
income statement (i.e. investment property), and for its other investments the unrealised gain/ (loss) on the
re-measurement of that investment to fair value are taken to a revaluation reserve (i.e. available-for-sale
investments).

Therefore, to ensure that only the net unrealised gains are deducted from solvency, the formula in part
10.2.4 also determines whether the scheme had any revaluation reserves in part 10.2.2.  Where a scheme
had a positive revaluation reserve (hence an unrealised gain) in the statement of financial position, as well
as an unrealised loss in part 10.1.9, the formula in part 10.2.4 will add back the unrealised loss in part
10.1.9, limited to the revaluation reserve amount in part 10.2.2.  This will ensure that only unrealised gains
are deducted from the solvency ratio, and that no unrealised losses are added to the solvency ratio.

It is important to note that, where a scheme had a revaluation reserve (unrealised gain) in part 10.2.2 as
well as a cumulative net unrealised gain in part 10.1.9 the full unrealised gain will pull through to part 10.2.4.

Encumbered assets
Section 35(4) of the Act states: “A medical scheme shall not be deemed to hold an asset for the purposes of
this Act to the extent that such asset is encumbered”. In addition, section 35(6) (c) states that a medical
scheme shall not directly or indirectly borrow money without the prior approval of the Council or subject to
such directives as the Council may issue.

Therefore, where a specific asset is encumbered in respect of obligations between other persons (third party
liability), there is a risk of loss to the scheme. For example, a cession of share certificates or insurance
policy as collateral for a third party loan. In such a case, the liability will be in the third party’s books. Such
encumbered assets should be deducted from the accumulated funds. Should other variants of
encumbrances present themselves to medical schemes, the underlying principles, including risk of loss and
location of liability, should be considered. The final effect should not be an iniquitous position for the
scheme.
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However, where an encumbered asset is in respect of a liability that is in the scheme’s statement of financial
position, the encumbered assets should not be deducted from accumulated funds. This would be the case,
for instance, in a finance lease or instalment sale agreement where computer equipment has been
purchased. If the encumbered assets were to be deducted, the net effect would be a net liability, which is
tantamount to double accounting.

The amount in line 10.2.5 pulls automatically through from part 4.25.2 in respect of total encumbered assets
and total suretyships.

Minority interest
Only scheme-specific funds are taken into account in the solvency calculation. Minority interests in
consolidated parties are therefore deducted from the total members’ funds per statement of financial
position. The amount in line 10.2.6 automatically pulls through from line 5.2.1.6 (minority interest).

Subordinated loans
The scheme should only add a subordinated loan in part 10.2.7 if Council has approved the subordinated
loan, and gave approval that the specific loan can be treated as equity.

Annualised gross contributions
It should be noted that the gross annual contributions includes the annual contributions to members’ savings
accounts. Hence, the annualised gross contributions in part 10.2.10 pulls automatically through from
part 6.1 of the return.

Where a scheme did not meet the required minimum solvency level of 25%, as set out in Regulation 29,
they should complete the reason box at the bottom of part 10.2; indicating the reasons for not meeting the
25% solvency level, how many days the solvency level was below 25%, and whether a business plan was
submitted to Council in terms of section 35(11) and Regulation 29(4)).
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AUDIT TRAIL

The user would be able to generate a detailed account of changes made various users by selecting
the ‘Audit trail’ option on the task bar. The following screen will appear:

The report parameters are determined by:
· All changes / changes made by a specific user;
· Whole return / specific parts; and
· Dates.

It should be noted that the audit trail had only been developed in respect of the following parts: 4.1,
4.2, 4.3(a), 4.4, 4.6, 4.7, 4.8, 4.9, 4.12, 4.13, 4.16.1, 4.16.2, 4.16.3, 4.23. The remainder of the
parts will only be developed in the 2018 financial year.

It should be noted that the audit trail cannot be generated in respect of any “Other (specify)” lines.

After the user has determined the relevant parameters of the audit trail report, he/she should click
on the “Generate audit trail” button.
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Based on the selection of parameters, an audit trail report will then be generated and emailed to
the user that requested it.
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PRINT REQUEST FOR RETURN

To access the print options available, the user should click on the “print” option available on the task bar.
The following screen will appear:

This page explains in detail the different print options available to the user as well as the procedures to be
followed.

Hence, the user has the following print options:
· Print validation rules:  A list of all the validation rules applicable to that specific year’s statutory return

will be e-mailed to the user.
· Print pull throughs: A list of all the pull throughs applicable for that specific year’s statutory return will be

e-mailed to the user.
· Print a blank return: A blank word document for that specific year’s statutory return will be e-mailed to

the user.
· Print return for auditors: A draft word document, which contains all the information currently captured on

the return, will be e-mailed to the user.

It should be noted that all print requests are sent to the Office’s generators, which are processed on a first
come first serve basis.  Hence, all requests are queued at the generators to be processed.  Please note that
it takes approximately 30 minutes for an annual statutory return word document to be generated.
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Therefore, should you be third in the queue, you will only receive your word document (whether it is a final
or draft copy) in an hour and a half’s time.

Also important to note that print requests will be e-mailed to the user as well as to the Principal Officer,
Chairperson and Trustee signature.  The data captured in part 1.1 of the return will be used to obtain the e-
mail addresses of the relevant people.

VALIDATION OF RETURN

To validate a return, please click on the ‘validate’ option on the task bar.  The following screen will appear:

This page explains in detail the validation process. It should be noted that all validation requests are sent to
the Office’s generators, which are processed on a first come first serve basis.  Hence, all requests are
queued at the generators to be processed.  Please note that it takes approximately 5 minutes to validate an
annual statutory return.  Therefore, should you be third in the queue, you will only receive your validation
results via e-mail in 15 minutes’ time.
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After clicking on the validate button the following screen appears, which only explains the validation process
further.  The user should click on OK.

It should be noted that the user will not be able to access the online statutory return, whilst the return is in
the queue to be validated.  The following screen will appear, if the user tries to access the online statutory
return, whilst the return is busy validating:
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The user would then receive a list of the validation errors generated via e-mail which need to be resolved
before a final submission can be done:

After the validation process was successful, the following message would be sent to the user:
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SUBMISSION OF RETURN

When the return has been completed in its entirety, the auditors and the board of trustees had approved the
draft word document and all validation rules have successfully passed, the user can submit the return, which
will ensure that a final word document is e-mailed to the scheme.

The user should use the ‘submit’ option on the task bar, to submit the return.  The following screen will
appear:
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The user should now click on the ‘Submit Return’ button at the bottom of the page.  The following screen
will appear:

The user should now only click on the OK button.

Important to note that when the return has been submitted it will automatically be sent to the validation
generators, to ensure that the final return has successfully validated.  If all the validation rules passed
successfully, the system will automatically send the return to the word document generator, where it will be
queued for processing of the final word document.

Again, as stated under the print function, all print requests are sent to the Office’s generators, which are
processed on a first come first serve basis.  Hence, all requests are queued at the generators to be
processed.  Please note that it takes approximately 30 minutes for an annual statutory return word
document to be generated.  Therefore, should you be third in the queue, you will only receive your word
document (whether it is a final or draft copy) in an hour and a half’s time.

It should also be noted that after the return has been submitted, it will be locked and the user will not be able
to make any further adjustments to the return.  Hence, before the user does a final submission of the return,
he or she should ensure that both the board of trustees and auditors are in agreement that no further
changes are required to the online statutory return.
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HELP FUNCTION

This document will be available from the ‘Help’ function on the task bar.

LOG OUT FUNCTION

As soon as the user presses the “Log out” button on the task bar, it will go back to the login screen:


